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THIS DQCUMENT IS IMPORYANT and if you are a holder of Ordinary shares it requires your immediate attention [f
you are in doubt as to the action you should take or the contents of this document, you should seek advice from an
independent financial adwisor, authonsed f in the UK under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, or other
appropriately authonsed financial advisor if outside of the UK If you have sold or transferred your Ordinary shares
in the Company, you should send this document and any accompanying Form of Proxy, immediately to the purchaser
or transferee, or to the stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for onward
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KEY INFORMATION

{ SUMMARY INVESTMENT POLICY AND BENCHMARK

To achieve growth of shareholder value, Hansa Trust
PLC invests in a pontfolio of special situations, where
indmidual holdings or speafic sectors may constitute
a stgnificant proportion of the portfolio or that of the
equity of the companies concerned This nvestment
approach may produce returns which are not replicated
by movements 1n any market wndex Performance 1s

measured against an absolute benchmark denved from
the three year average roling rate of return of a five
year UK Government bond, plus 2% with interest being
reinvested semi-annually  Investments are intended
to add value over the medium to longer term through a
non-market correlated, conviction based investment style

[ STATISTICS
31-Mar-13 31-Mar-12 % change

Shareholders’ Funds £259.9m £268 2m 31)
Dividends (see Note 7) 15 Op 14 Op 71
Net Asset Value (“NAV™) per share
Opening NAV 1,117 5p 1,100 5p -
Dividends paid (see Note 7) {14 0p) (3 5p} -
Revenue and Capital Return (20 6p) 20 5p -
Closing NAV 1,082.9p 1,117 5p 1
Performance Benchmark 38% 4 4% -
Ordinary share price 837 Op 220 0p (20)
‘A’ non-voting Ordinary share pnce 815 Op 873 0p (6 6)
FTSE All-Share Index 3,381 3,003 126
Discount

Ordinary shares 227% 17 7% -

‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares 24 7% 21 9% -
Total Return (Dividends Reinvested)

Ordinary shares 7 3)% (2 8)% -

‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares (4 8)% G 7)% -

FTSE Alt-Share Index - Total Return 17 4% 1 9% -

[ COMPANY REGISTRATION AND NUMBER

The Company is registered in England & Wales under company number 126107




TEN YEAR PERFORMANCE STATISTICS

[_TEN YEAR RECORD

Net Asset FTSE
Year Shareholders’ Ordinary and Annuat Share Price All-Share Discount/(Premium)
ended Funds  ‘A’Ordinary Dividends  Ordinary ‘A’ Ordinary Index Ordinary ‘A’ Ordinary
2013 £259 9m 1,0829p 15 0p 837 Op 815 0p 3,381 22 7% 24 7%
2012 £268 2m 1,117 5p 14 0p 920 0p 873 0p 3,003 17 7% 21 %%
2011 £264 1m 1,100 5p 35p 951 0p 930 0p 3,068 13 6% 15 5%
2010 £215 Om 895 9p 25 0p 760 Op 750 0p 2,910 15 2% 16 3%
2009 £152 4m 635 Op 18 Op 510 Op 490 0p 1,984 19 7% 22 8%
2008 £221 9m 924 5p 13 0p 820 0p 815 Op 2,927 11 3% 11 8%
2007 £24% 5m 1,039 4p 12 5p 1,123 0p 1,022 5p 3,283 (8 0)% 16%
2006 £196 4m 818 2p 975p 847 5p 818 Op 3,048 (3 6)% 0 0%
#2005 £140 1m 583 5p 9 25p 566 0p 546 5p 2,458 30% 6 3%
2004 £102 4m 426 8p 60p 350 0p 346 5p 2,197 18 0% 18 8%

# Restated to comply with IFRS, which was adopted in 2006 No information before this date has been restated

| TEN YEAR SHAREHOLDERS’ TOTAL RETURN RECORD

Net Asset Value Total Return
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Past performance ts not a guide to future performance Source iInternal unaudited management information




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

[ 2012-2013 A GOOD YEAR FOR MOST STOCK MARKETS

This past year (to 31 March 2013) has been good for most
of the world's stock markets Although there has not been
any particularly wonderful news en either the economic
or pobtical front, the combination of lots of {quantitative
easing) money and the absence of ¢nsis events has fed
renewed confidence In stock markets Amongst the major
equity markets, that of the United States led the way with
a gan of 17 2% {its S&P Composite Index expressed In
Pounds}, while our own market (the FTSE All-share Index)

_LTHE YEAR'S RESULTS

rose by 12 6% The disappointments tended to come
from the equity markets of the BRIC countries with, | am
afraid as far as we were concerned, Brazil (the BOVESPA
Index) performing worst with a fall of 16 8% (expressed
in Pounds) The drniving sentiments behind markets were
emerging confidence In economic recovery in the US, relief
at the sunvival of the Euro, concern about a slowdown i the
economic growth 1n China and the consequences for those
economies that feed off the China story, including Brazil

NAV. -3 1% to 1,082 9p per share
Benchmark +3.8%

However, these past twelve months have been
disappointing for us with our net asset value declining by
3 1% per share This compares with our benchmark which
returned a positive 3 8% In the Investment Manager's
Report, John Alexander reports on the reasons for the

Starting NAV
Change (inc divs receved}

Qcean Wilsons —44 6p
Other Four Holdings* -40 8p
Rest of Portfolio +74 6p

Costs & Dividends pand

Total Change
End NAV

disappointing results, hightighting the influence of Ffive
holdings, including that of Ocean Wilsons on the year's
returns It 15 worthwhile enumerating the effect that these
holdings had on the net asset vatue — shown in the table
below

1,117 5p £2682m
-£107m -9 7%
—-£9 8m —24 4%
+£17 9m +14 9%
-10 8p —£2 6m -19%
-238p ~£5 7m
34 6p -£8 3m
1,082 9p £259 9m -31%

* Holdings in Andor Technology, BG Gp, Cape & Hargreaves Svs

John, as he always does, gives a full account of the
major heldings in the portfolio, so | won't repeat in my
statement what he has wntten about them, including
about the holdings which have been a (hopefully
temporary) problem We have always made 1t clear that
the portfolio 1s managed on a long term basis (we regard
at least five years as long-term), which means that we
tend to have low portfeho turnover (usually under 10%
per annum) Having low portfolio turnover means that
we are patient about the long-term prospects of each of
our portfolio holdings and won't necessanly sell one If
and when the underlying company runs into temporary

difficulies Differentiating between temporary setbacks
and protracted mismanagement of the companies that
we 1nvest 1n1s, of course, the art behind when to - and
when not to — cut losses Selling holdings after bad news
15 not always a smart thing to do The question we ask
ourselves, when confronted with a problem holding, 15
does the company concerned have the management
skills and expenience to resolve its difficulties and then go
on to prosper? We believe that, in the case of alt five of
these companies, they do indeed have that management
strength and that, in time, the set back in the market value
of these holdings will be recovered




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (ontnued)

| OCEAN WILSONS

Value of Holding -9 7% at £97 3m

At our last AGM we had, as we always do at our AGMs, a
number of questions from shareholders about Ocean
Wilsons and 1ts prospects Although 1t 1s a large holding -
we own 26 5% of it and our holding accounted for 37 4%
of our net asset value at the end of the year — it 1s not for
this annual report to provide a complete account of that
company of its past year or of its prospects Having said that
John does give an excellent summary of its recent results in
his report, but Ocean Wilsons has a good website on which
amuch fuller account can be read (www oceanwilsons bm)
Do please log on to it and read about it

There are three comments | would like to add First of all, it
15 our view that the company has excellent management,
a view that 1s backed up by the reputation of the
management of its Brazillan subsidiary, Wilson Sons, with
good management, with the development of Brazi's huge
offshore pre-salt ail and gas fields, with the natural growth
of Brazil's long-term importfexport trade and with the good
long-term prospects for the Brazihan economy, Wilson Sons
prospects are most encouraging It remamns therefore a
cornerstone investment for Hansa Trust

DIVIDEND

Secondly, the dividend it pays us represents an important
part of the income of Hansa Trust Inthe past year we receved
£1 91 million, which accounted for circa 31 8% of the income
we recetved from quoted investments Ocean Wilsons has
a clearly stated dividend policy, outlined in its chairman's
statement The policy means that the dividend can vary from
year to year, it can nse and it can decline That in turn will
have an effect on the dividend that we can pay We, as a
Board, accept that it 15 an appropnate dividend policy for its
circumstances and we do not attempt to influence it

And thirdly, as | am sure shareholders are aware, Ocean
Wilsons 1s a holding company, with its shares quoted on the
London Stock Exchange Durning the last year its share price
dechned by 9 7% —n large part because sentiment towards
Brazil was not particularly positive (I think nvestors got
over excited about Brazil’s economic prospects and then
reality set in), the BOVESPA Index dechned 12 6%, the
Braziban Real by 4 8%, leaving the Index down 16 8%
(expressed in Pounds) Meanwhile the development of
Wilson Sons’ busmess and Ocean Wilsons' investment
portfolic continued to make progress

15 Op per share (v.14.0p)

Afinaldividend of 11 5p per Ordinary and “A” Ordinary share s
being recommended to shareholders at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting If approved, it will be paid to shareholders en
record 21 June 2013 on 15 August 2013 An intenm divdend
was paid to shareholders on 13 December 2012 so that the
total in respect of the year will amount to 15p per share, which
compares with that of 14 Op per share paid last year

We have made the point in the past that we pay out what we
earn but that the income that we earn i1s dependent on the

dividends received during the course of the year from the
heldings in the portiolio Some years we will earn more, other
years less However, If the companies in which we are invested
increase their profits and divadends over the long term, then
we would expect our dividend income to grow over the long-
term Using the same five year time span as we do to lgok at
our long-term capital growth, the chart (overleal) shows how
our dividend payments over successive five year pertods have
grown - over the long-term




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)

Dividend Payments (total payments over five years to}

78 3p 75 5p

80p

70p

60p
50p
40p
30p
20p
10p

Op

2004 2003 2006 2007 2008

[_SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE

2009 2010 201 2012 2013

Ordinary shares
‘A’ Ordinary shares

-9 0% to 837p per share,

| am afraid that the returns for shareholders over the past
year have not been good - as the summary figures above
show The disappointing decline in the net asset value,
allied to the sentiment over Braz)l (and thence towards our
holding 1in Ocean Wilsons} served to discourage would

he buyers of our shares It may alse be that our discount
policy — whereby we do not seek to manipulate either of
the share prices {and thence the discount) - discouraged

Attribution of Shareholders’ Returns

Due to NAV change
Due to discount change
Dividends

Shareholders’ Total Return

As the table illustrates, the poor returns stem in part from
the decline in the net asset value and in part from the nse in

THE DISCOUNT

-6 6% to 815p per “A” share,

Discount to NAV 22 7%
Discount to NAV: 24 7%

those Investors who might otherwise have bought the
shares for —f | may use the expression — the chance to
make a “quick buck” However, | would point out that there
has not been a lot of selling pressure, in part (I believe)
because our shareholders do tndeed take a long-term
perspective with themr investment The returns for the year
are summarised in the table below

Ordinary Shares ‘A’ Ordinary Shares
=34 6p -31% -34 6p -31%
—48 4p -5 1% -23 4p -2 5%
+15 0p +1 6% +150p +1 6%
-68 0p -7 2% 43 Op -4 6%

the discounts which the shares sell to their underlying net
asset value, offset by the dividends paid out

Each year | stress that, we do not seek to manage the
discount believing that 1t 1s the gan in the net asset value
and the payment of dividends that witl drive long-term
returns The better they are, the more likely our shares will
be in demand and the discount 1s to be at a low level! All the
buybacks in the world are unlikely to protect a share price
discount If our performance were to he poor and investers
don't want to ivestin us

However it 1sn’t just a blind faith in the benefit of good long-
term returns on the rating of our shares that determines
our policy of not mampulating the market pnce of our
shares There are other reasons Firstly to buy in shares
would require us to sell investments and result in &
nse 1n the proportion of the portfolio invested in Ocean
Wilsons, which holding is not for sale - being a strategic
investment, 1t would also affect our banking covenants
and thereby compromise our ability to borrow Secondly, a




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT ontnued)

commitment to manage the discount would require us to
invest only in marketable secunties ~ especially in those
difficult times when stock market iquidity 15 constrained
Part of the investment policy of Hansa Trust 15 to invest
in smaller emerging companies whose shares tend to be
ilhquid, priontising share buy backs over investing in such
companies, would compromise the long-term prospects for
shareholders Discount Management Policies, which turn
Investment trusts inta quasi urit trusts are not appropriate
for investment trusts mvesting i smaller capitalised
companies Thirdly buying back shares shnnks the hquidity
of our own shares, arguably making them even more

NAV (ex OW Holding)

Value of OW Holding

Value of OW Holding Discount
Underlying NAV

Share prices

Underlying Discounts

While your Board of Directors does not believe that
buying back shares will necessanly reduce the discount, 1t
understands that having a large discount is not a satisfactory
situation Although it 1s a rather simplistic thing to say, the
fact 1s that a large discount is the consequence of a lack of
buyers for the shares That in turn may be a consequence of
a number of things but almost certainly the most important
two are that there 1s concern amongst investors generally
about the Company's prospects andfor that the story
behind those prospects is not well known

Quite naturally we have confidence in the prospects for our
portfolio—or else wewould change it for something different
- so it follows that we need to go out and tell our story - one
of the exciting prospects not only for Ocean Wilsons but also
for the other companies that we are Invested in We need to
emphasise the considerable commitment that the Directars

| LONG-TERM (NAV only) RETURNS

unattractive — especially so to those investors whose short
term honzons reguire short term liquidity

It should not be construed that we will never buy back
shares, we will if there 1s an unusua! opportunity that 1s
particularly attractive and 1t were to raise the net asset
value by a significant amount

There 15 an extra dimension to the discounts of Hansa
Trust's shares, this being the underlying discount of the
price of Ocean Wilsons’ shares to i1ts own net asset value
We thought it would be helpful to show a table illustrating
this

Mar-12 Mar-13

per Hansa Trust share
659 6p 677 6p
457 9p 405 3p
163 3p 190 8p
1,280 &p 1,2737p
Ord 920 0p 873 0p
‘A’ Ord 837 Op 8i50p
Ord -28 2% -34 3%
‘A’ Ord =31 8% -36 0%

and their families have to the Company’s shares (“skin-
in the-game” as the Americans are wont to call 1it") and to
spell out the advantages of the two class capital structure
in allowing us to manage the portfolic on a long term basis,
without the threat of short-term performance pressures We
are In the process of engaging one or two compantes to help
us with our investor relations, recogrising that the Hansa
Trust story 1s not for everyone but that it 1s a geod one and
one that will mterest some long-term investors

5 Years NAV +17 1%
Ordinary share price +2 1%
‘A’ Ordinary share pnice 00%

Benchmark +18 8%
FTSE All-Share Index  +15 5%




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (contmued)

While an annual report does ~ by necessity - report to
shareholders on the year just past and on the prospects
for the years to come, we continue to focus on the long-
term returns in assessing the performance of Hansa Trust

NAV Returns over
3 Years

5 Years

10 Years

These longer term returns are a lot better than those we
have just reported to you What s gquite interesting 1s that
the top five five-year contnbutors to the 158 Spincrease in
the net asset value (+17 1%} include three of the holdings
which did not fare so wellin the last year Those top five
holdings are Ocean Wilsons, NCC Group, Expenan Group,
Weir Group and Andor Technology Indeed all five of this

NAY (ex OW holding) over
3 Years

5 Years

10 Years

And finally, given the five year time scale, we look at the
record of Hansa Trust over the past to see how we have
done gver successive five year penods and to see If we
are fulfiling our pnmary goal — that of making money for

Five Year NAV Returns (pa) 2004 to 2013

So each year we report on those longer-term returns and
the figures are contained in the table below

NAV Benchmark FTSE All-Share Index

+20 9% +8 8% +16 2%
+17 1% +18 8% +15 5%
+300 5% +54 6% +94 7%

year's major detractors have coninbuted significantly
to the five year performance, a fact that gives us some
comfort that they tontimue to be worth backing

We also monttor the performance of the portfolio (ex the
holding in Qcean Wilsons} and the table below shows how
that has done

NAV Benchmark FTSE All-Share Index

+24 7% +8 8% +16 2%
+9 2% +18 8% +15 5%
+176 1% +54 6% +94 7%

shareholders over the long-term By and large we have
been successful at that over quite a tricky penod in the
market — as the chart below shows

30

25

20
Yo

15

+8 3%

+9 0%

10

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

NB

2009 2010 2011

2013

2012

All of the above figures refer to the performance of the NAV without incorporating the payment of dividends




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT tcontinued)

[_LANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

31 July 2013 at 11 20am at the Washington Hotel, Curzon Street, London

The Annual General Meeting (“AGM™) will be held at the
Washington Hotel, Curzon Street, London (Green Park tube
station, see map on page 60) at 11 30 a m on Wednesday
31 July 2013 We have always had a good turnout of
shareholders, which 1s important to your Directors, as it
gives us the chance to hear your views and to answer any
questions that you may have John Alexander will give his
presentation on the past year and on the prospects for the
present ane (and beyond) Please come and join us for the
occasion

At the beginning of the year - and following Jamie
Borwick's retirement as a director of the Company at the
last AGM — we appointed two new directors to the Board
Mr Jonathan Davie and Lord Oxford We are excited by
these appointments and believe that they will make an
important contribution to the governance of Hansa Trust
andtoits progress mthe yearsto come Jonathan Davie has
a City background having worked for BZW, an investment
bank which was eventually taken over by Credit Suisse
Raymond Oxford’s career was In the diplomatic service
and, since retinng from that, he has taken on a number
of business appointments Please come to the AGM, for
amongst other reasons, the chance to meet them They
have already started to make contnibutions to the Board
and its workings

The process of selecting them was a ngorous one and
involved considenng a good number of candidates — all of
whom were, 1n different ways excellent The UK Corporate
Governance Code states that “The search for board
candidates should be cenducted and appointments made,
on ment, agamst objective critena”, in our policy we state
that “it 1s of paramount importance to shareholders that,
after consideration of the skills and experience needed by
the Board, candidates are chosen on the basis of ment only
and that there should be no discnmination in the choice of
directors for any reason, be it gender, race, religion, etc
We used the senices of Trust Associates, specialists In

finding directors for investment trusts, whose help was
invaluable in the process of selection

At last year's AGM there were — amongst the many
questions —three that | would like to menticn ~ particularly
as most shareholders were unable to jon us for the
meeting They were

s “Given the size of the holding mn Ocean Wiisons,
would 1t not be appropriate to expand the investment
commentary to include a view of its future prospects?’
While John Alexander’s report provides a good deal
of informaticn about the past year's trading, 1t does
not express an opinon about its future prospects We
do not believe that 1t 1s our place to make detalled
projections and express detailed opinions about the
prospects of any of our investee companies, most
especrally about Ocean Wilsons given our relationship
with the company There are brokers' reports on it
which provide opinions on it Having said that, | do
express a good deal of confidence in its future based
on its excellent management and the prospects for the
husinesses in which it is involved

e “Should we not have made mention of the reduction
in Ocean Wilsons” dividend and the issues surrounding
concerns about its corporate governance, which were
raised at its AGM?" We, as a board of directors do not
seek to control the governance of Ccean Wilsens nor
to determine its dividend policy — anymore than we do
those of our other investee companies We, the Board
of Directors of Hansa Trust, support the governance of
Ocean Wilsons but we are not accountable forit and do
not make public comment on it

e “Should the Board not institute an active share re-
purchasing scheme m order to reduce the discount
and thereby enhance the net asset value and improve
the hiquidity of the Company's shares™ | hope | have
addressed that question in full mn “The Discount”
section above




CHA]RMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)

|_PROSPECTS

There 1s so much wnitten about the prospects for our
economy - and indeed for other economies tn the world
- about the United States, Europe, China and now
increasingly about Japan, about the world's financial
imbalances and the huge burden of debt that so suffocates
economic growth and finally about the prospects for stock
markets, corporate profits and, perhaps most important
of all, about corporate dividends, that there 1s lttle | can
add that would either be new or unusual John's report
summarises the background of what we have heen going
through and indeed what we are going through and he
speculates on the outlook for the future It s well worth
reading

Economic behaviour 1s dniven by human behaviour and
In that respect we are all endeavouring to come through
this financial mess with as little change to our ife style as
we can get away with — democratic politics demands it In
some cases — particularly in those countries forced into
so called austenty politics and economics by either the
market place or by external dictat (Portugal, italy, Ireland,
Greece, Spain and new Cyprus spning to mind} — there
15 some life style change being forced on some people,
particularly the young with the horrendous levels of youth
unemployment inherentin so many countries Butinoathers
- notably the UK and the USA —rather than change, rather
than revert to economies supported by reasonable levels
of saving and investment, we are treating the symptoms of
overspending and debt buitding with more overspending
and debt and monumental printing of money to pay for it It
15 not a sustamnable way of life, it will result in slow growth
at best and further financial crises at worst It should not
be too difficult for those in charge to notice that high and
sustainable levels of economic growth come from high
levels of saving and investment

Having made that rather negative caveat about the
background for investment - in any asset ¢lass — it should
be noted that equity investment s ultimately about backing
the corporate endeavours of people Equity investment
starts with backing good and selfless management - a
point | always emphasise — and usually ends with good
profits and dividend growth, reflected in nising share
prices Gwven the wirtually inwisible interest rates that
there are around the world and given the demographic
pressure for generating income from investments, equities
of such companies with their higher yields and prospects
for growth, probably offer the best tncome return for
investors, without an unreasonable ncrease in the nsk
that goes with the search for income Add to this the

probability of continued printing of money and there 1s an
excellent chance that equities will prove to be rewarding
Investments

So our own prospects depend on finding those goed and
selflessly managed companes, mvesting i1n them and
reaping the rewards that should follow There is no reason
why we shouldn't, we have done so In the past

MMJ%@\&MAW

Alex Hammond-Chambers

Chairman 21 june 2013
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013
| THE BOARD'S OBJECTIVES

The Board 1s charged by the shareholders with the responsibility for looking after the affairs of the Company It involves
the ‘STEWARDSHIP' of the Company’s assets and llabilities and *THE PURSUIT OF GROWTH OF SHAREHOLDER VALUE
These responsibilities are discharged in many ways and are detailed helow

THE BOARD

The Directors who served dunng the year to 31 March 2013 are set out below Lord Borwick stepped down from the Board on
31 July 2012 Lord Oxford and Mr Jonathan Davie were appointed as Directors on 1 January 2013 Each of the Directars bring
certain individual and complementary skills and experience to the Board's workings, as summarised below and have dedicated
their ime to the Company to ensure its success All Directors resign at each AGM and offer themselves for re-election The Board
endorses the re-appointment of each of the Directors based on his eontinuing contrbution to the Company and its shareholders

The Company’s Articles of Association include a general power for the Directors to authonse any matter which would or might
constitute or give nse to a breach of the duty of a director under s 175 of the Companies Act 2006 Procedures have been
established for the disclosure of any such conflicts and also for the consideration and authorsation of these canflicts by the

Board, where relevant

Mr Hammond-Chambers (Chairman)

Alex Joined the Board tn 2002 His career has been involved
with portfolio management and mvestment trusts, from
which he brings — inter alia - expenence and understanding
of investment palicies, strategies, stock selection and nsk
management He worked for lvory & Sime for 27 years as an
investment trust manager and then as executive chairman
before retinng as chairman in 1991 He 1s charman and a
director of a number of other investment compames He
has served as a chairman of the Association of Investment
Companies and as a governor of the NASD (NASDAQ)

Mr Davie

Joined the Board In January 2013, Jonathan was appointed
chairman of IG Group in 2004 He 15 also a non executive
director of Persimmon and chairman of First Avenue Partners,
an alternatives advisory boutique

Jonathan qualified as a Chartered Accountant and then joined
George M Hiltand Co and became an authonsed dealer on
the London Stock Exchange The firm was acquired by Wedd
Durlacher Mordaunt and Co where Jonathan became a
partnerin 1975 He was the senior dealing partner of the firm
on its acquisiion by Barclays Bank to form BZW in 1986

Jonathan developed BZW's Fixed Income business pnor to
becoming chief executive of the Global Equities Business in
1991 In 1996 he became deputy chairman of BZW and then
vice chairman of Credit Suisse First Boston in 1998 on their
acquisition of most of BZW’s busmesses Jonathan retired
from Credit Swisse in February 2007

Lord Oxford

|oined the Board n January 2013, Raymond 1s currently non
executive director of JKX Oil & Gas Plc, he joined the Foreign

Office in 1980 and was the Counsellor at the British Embassy
in Kiev fram 1992 until his resignation In 1997 to pursue
private business interests

Mr Salomon

Wilbam’s career in investment banking and management
has involved working on and understanding corporate
strategies His own skills and expenence are important to the
Board in developing and monitonng imvestment n special
imvestment themes and in strategic investments Both a
German and Bntish citizen, he joined the Board in 1999
He 15 the senior partner of Hansa Capital Partners LLP (the
Investment Manager and Company Secretary), chairman of
New India Investment Trust PLC, deputy charrman of Ocean
Wilsons Holdings Limuted and its listed subsidiary Wilson
Sons Limited

Professor Wood

Geoffrey has great knowledge of economics generally and
monetary and fiscal policy 1ssues speafically His skills
and expenence are important to the Board, particularly 1n
understanding the effect of such policyssues on the markets

He was appointed to the Board in 1997 and 1s Professor
Ementus of Economics at Cass Business School, in the City
of London, Professor Emenitus of Monetary Economics at the
University of Buckingham and a visiting Professonal Fellow at
the Centre for Commercial Law at Queen Mary and Westfield
College of London University He has been visiting Professor
at the University of South Carolina and at the National Bureau
for Economic Research at Harvard In addition he 15 and has
been an adwiser fo a number of Central Banks and City of
London financial firms
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| BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the performance and development of the business, including an analysis using the KPIs listed below, 15 given
i the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 10 There have been no important events since 31 March 2013, of which the
Board are aware, which would have a matertal impact on the Company

Investment Policy

The Investment policy adopted by the Board, which
constitutes the Company's Bustness Model, Is to Invest 1n
a portfohio of quoted and unquoted special situations, with
the objective of achieving growth of shareholder value

By the very nature of special situation investments, the
opportunity to invest inthemwill arise at any time and often
not for long periods Sometimes a number of opportunities
may arse at the same time, so any single investment
may, on occasion, constitute a significant proportton
of the portfolio or of that of the company concerned
The Investment Manager 1s charged by the Board with
implementing the investment policy under its supervision
and guidance It 1s important for the Investment Manager
to be able to vary any investment at any time, i order
either to protect shareholders’ funds and/or to optimise
shareholders’ returns

Portfolio Limits

The Board of Directors has set a limit of 15% of the
portfolio of the Company that can be invested in any one
company, the limit applying at the time of the acquisition
of the holding The Board has not set a limit on the market
value of an investment held in any company, which can
therefore rise above 15% The Board has not seta limit on
the number or value of unguoted investments which can
be held in the portfolio, nor has it set a limit on the number
of companies it can invest in, however it would usually
invest in at least 30 companies

Likewise, the Board has set a imit of 30% of the value of
the portfolio that can be mnvested ito any one sector or
theme at the time the investment 15 made, but has not set
a formal limit on the market value that can be held in any
one sector ortheme Forthe avoidance of doubt the Board,
warking with the Manager and other adwisers, determines
what constitutes a sector or theme Again, although the
Board has not set either a floor or a ceiing on the number
of sectors invested in, 1t 1s expected that it would usually
exceed four

The investment policy enables the Investment Manager
to vest worldwide, in either UK or foreign, quoted or
unguoted companies The Board does not believe it 1s
practical to impose hmits on the geographical allocation
of assets because, with the globalisation of businesses, it

1s an almost impossible task to momitor While fully aware
of the impact of geopolitical influences on the outcome
of investment returns the Board, in conjunction with the
Investment Manager, regularly reviews each investment
on its dmwvidual ments There 15 no geographical
constramt on where and how much may be invested in any
one country or currency

Borrowing Limits

The Board believes shareholders’ returns will be enhanced
If the Company borrows money at approprate times for
the purpose of investment While the Constitution allows
the Company to borrow up to 35 times shareholders’
funds, the amount that can be borrowed at any time Is
normally subject to a constraint imposed in the lender's
berrowing covenants The Board will normally set an
informal borrowing bmit of approximately cne half of the
lender’s covenanted constraint at the time the borrowings
are made, allowing plenty of capaaty for the value of
the portfolio to fall without having to sell investments
to conform with those covenants However, In extreme
crcumstances, such as when it 1s belteved to be the
bottom of a bear market, the Board may well borrow up to
the full amount the lender's covenant allows

Hedging Limits

The Investment Manager, In consultation with the Board,
may from time to time put in place a hedging strategy
i order to mitigate some of the stock market nsks of
the portfolio It 1s not the intention of the Board to have
In place a hedging strategy which would eliminate zli
adverse effects to shareholders' funds caused by a fall in
general market prices, nor to protect the short-term value
of the portfolio Rather the aim would be to realise, in
crcumstances of a severe and sudden fallin stock markets,
a sum of money which can be used to take advantage of
the fall and to purchase investments at prices which may
add very good long-term value No limit has been set on
the proportion of the portfolio that might be hedged
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Results and Dividends

The results attributable to shareholders for the year and the transfer to reserves are shown on page 43

The dwidends paid and proposed are as follows

2013 2012
£000 £000
Ordinary and ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares
Intenims paid of 3 5p (2012 3 5p) pershare 840 840
Final proposed 11 5p (2012 10 5p) per share 2,760 2,520
Total dividends 3,600 3,360

The Board is proposing a final dividend of 11 5p per Ordinary and *A’ Ordinary non-veting share and if approved will be
paid or 15 August 2013 to shareholders registered at the close of business on 21 fune 2013 (ex-dividend 19 June 2013}

Key Performance Indicators

The Board reviewed the nisks from the point of view of the long-term shareholder, the principal one being that over the
long-term {which we determined was five years) they do not make a return from their investment in the Company The
key perfarmance indicator (“KPI™), against which the Board compared shareholders’ share price and dividend returns, 15
the benchmark, which is in essence a proxy for the return from a five year fixed interest investment, plus 2% Other KPls
include the NAV returns against those of the benchmark, against the Company's peer group average returns, against
the market (the FTSE All-Share Index) and the total expense ratio in retation to the returns shareholders have received
The numbers are computed on a cne, three, five and ten year basis ~ five years being the better time period over which
to judge the progress of the Company

i) Shareholders - Total Returns

A companson s made between the ‘Total Return’ of each class of shares to that of the three year average rolling rate of
return of a five year UK Government bond, plus 2% with interest re-invested semi-annually (the Company’s benchmark)
This companson illustrates how shareholders’ returns compared with the returns of the benchmark

To 31 March 2013 1year 3 years 5 years 10 years
Share Price
Ordinary shares (7.3Y% 13 1% 12 7% 361 5%
‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares (4 8)% 117% 10 7% 345 2%
Company's benchmark 38% 13 4% 26 3% 59 8%

ti) Company - Total Refurns

These companisons are used to determine the effectiveness of the investment strategy and of the Investment Manager

To 31 March 2013 1 year 3 years 5years 10 years
Net Asset Value (17)% 23 4% 27 3% 364 4%
Absolute comparison

Company's benchmark 38% 13 4% 26 3% 59 8%
Relative comparison

FTSE All-Share Index 17.4% 30 9% 42 0% 187 4%
Peer group average 23 0% 42 3% 52 0% 322 4%
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1) Discount/(Premium)

A comparnison 15 made between the discounts/{prermiums) of the Company's two classes of shares and those of the

Company's Peer Group and of the AIC Average

2013
Discount
Ordinary shares 22 7%
‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares 24 7%
Peer Group Average 11 4%
AIC Average 6 9%
iv) Expense ratios

2010 2008 2003
15 2% 113% 20 5%
16 3% 118% 19 4%
10 9% 91% 111%
10 1% 8 6% 15 1%

A companson s made between the level of expenses (administrative and management) of the Company and the net
asset returns (both annualised) in order 10 assess the value for money shareholders recelve

To 31 March 2013 1 year

Ongoing charges per annum 09%

NAV Total Return 38%
Risks

The Board considers the operational nsks shareholders
face can be divided into external and internal risks

External nsks to shareholders and their returns are those
that can severely (nfluence the investment environment
within which the Company operates including government
policies, economic recession, decltning corporate
profitabiity, nsing inflation and nterest rates and
excessive stock market speculation At the annual strategy
meeting, the Directors and the Management highlighted
certain risks that concerned them, including

e Currency instabulity, in particular cencerns about the
Euro and the Yen

¢ Uncertainty of outcome of recovery policies
(particularly inflation or deflation), given they amount
to an experiment

* Aftershocks to the financial crisis, particularly in the
continental European banking system

* Unguantifiable nsks in China

*  Risk of political paralysis stemming from the coalition
Government

¢«  Terrorism and international conflict
*  Risks associated with Braail

*  Major long-term decline in the pnice of oil (affecting
Wilson Sons' business)

3 years 5 years 10 years
0 9% 0 9% 09%%
13 4% 26 3% 5% 8%

+  Regulatory interference and suffocation of enterprise,
particularly from the EU

It should be stressed that these are the external nisks which
most concern the Directors and the Management, not
forecasts of future events The management of these risks
15 achieved by sensible stock and sector diversification, the
use of Investment restnctions and guidelines and monthly
reporting to the Board of the Company’s adherence to
these restnctions and guidelines

Internal and operational nisks to shareholders and
their returns are portfolio (stock and sector selection
and concentration), balance sheet {geanng), and/or
administrative mis management In respect of the risks
assoclated with administration, the loss of Approved
Investment Trust status under s 1158 CTA 2010 would
have the greatest impact The portfolio 15 continuously
monitored by the Manager to ensure the Company s
compliant with the key aspects of s 1158/1159 and any
discrepancies are reported to the Board in the monthly
compliance report

The mitigation of these nisks 1s achieved by the Board
performing regular reviews of all service providers and
monthly reviews of s 1158 compliance

The Board considers the nsks to the Company’s two share
prices, apart fromthose mentioned above, include the level
of discount or premium The Board momtors the discount/
premium and may take actionwhen appropnate However,
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given the Company's stated objective of increasing
shareholder value over the medium to long-term, the
Board does not consider short-term NAV or share pnce
volatslity to be a matenal nsk to long-term shareholders

Details of how the principal nisks ansing from financial
instruments (as determined by the accounting standards
board} are managed, have been summansed in Note 21 on
pages 55 to 58

THE PURSUIT OF GROWTH OF SHAREHOLDER VALUE

Details of the Company's policy on Stewardship in relation
to invested companies ¢an be found on the Company’s
website at www hansatrust com

In pursuit of shareholder value, the Board

Contracts out the administration and management of
the Company

The Board, i contracting out the administration
and management of the Company, seeks to engage
organisations which can provide the relevant levels of
expertence and expertise at an acceptable cost

Momitors third party suppliers, performance and
tosts

The Board, at Its regular meetings, reviews reports
prepared by both the Manager and the Administrator
which enables 1t to monitor the performance and
costs of the third party suppliers to the Company

Monitors investment performance and risks

The Board reviews reports prepared by the Manager
at its regular meetings, which enables it to monitor
the investment performance and nsks

Determines nvestment strategy, guidelines and
restrictions

The Board determines the nvestment strategy
m conjunction with the Manager The strategy Is
monitored regularly and refinements are made to 1t
as required, with formal review at the Board's annual
strategy meeting

The Board 1ssues formal investment guidelines and
restrictions, compliance with these are reported by
the Manager's compliance officer on a regular basis

Determines gearing levels and capital preservation
through the use of hedging instruments

The Board, taking account of advice from the Manager,
determines the maximum level of borrowings that the
Company will undertake at the time of borrowing The
Company has entered into a short-term loan facility
with BNP Panbas, currently the maximum level of
the facility 1s £30m The Board has approved the
utibsation of hedging instruments at appropriate
times i order to provide the porstfolio with a imited
degree of protection from extreme market declines

Monitors the share discount

The Board regularly monitors the level of discount
and, whilst 1t has the option to re-purchase shares,
it considers that the best means of attaining a good
rating for the shares 1s to concentrate on increasing
shareholder returns

Determines the level of dividends payable to
shareholders

The Board's policy 15 to distnbute to shareholders
the majonty of the Company’s income by way of
dividends
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|_SERVICE PROVIDERS

The Board consists entirely of non executive Directors, it
delegates the day to day implementation of its policies to
third party service providers The Board has contractually
delegated to external organmsations the management ofthe
investment portfolio, the custodial services which include
safeguarding of the assets and the day to day accounting
and company secretanal requirements Fach of these
contracts 1s enly entered into after proper consideration
of the quality and cost of services which are reviewed and
momtored either by the Board or its Committees

Investment Manager

Hansa Capital Partners LLP charges an investment
management fee at an annual rate of 1% of the net assets of
the Company (after any borrowings) but, after deducting the
value of the investment in Ocean Wilsons Holdings Limited
on which no fee 15 payable Hanseatic Asset Management
LBG, a company connected to Hansa Capital Partners LLP,
separately charges an investment management fee to the
investment subsidiary of Ocean Wilsons Holdings Limited
The terms of the investment management agreement
permut either party to terminate the agreement by giving to
the other not less than 12 months’ notice or such shorter
penod as 1s mutually acceptable There 1s no agreement
between the Company and the Investment Manager
concerning compensation In respect to the termimation of
the agreement In its annual assessment of the Investment
Manager, the Board has concluded that, because of the
calibre of the whole management team and Its commitment

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

to the Company and the long-term returns to shareholders
it has produced, it 1s in the best interest of shareholders
that the Manager remains in place under the present terms
Details of the fees paid to the Investment Manager can be
found in Note 3 on page 49

Auditor

The Auditor, Grant Thornton UK LLP, has expressed s
willingness to continue to act as Auditor to the Company
and a resolution to re-appoint Grant Thornton UK LLP
as Auditor to the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM

All non-audit work carried out by the Auditor is approved by
the Board, in advance, to ensure that Auditor's abjectivity
and independence 1s safeguarded (Detalls in Note 4 on
page 49)

Company Secretary

Secretanal services were provided by Hansa Capital
Partners LLP at an annual rate of £100,000, excluding VAT
(2012 £100,000)

Administrator

The Company engages Phoenix Administration Services
Limited as its Administrator

Custodian

The Company engages BNP Paribas Securities Services as
its Custodian

The Company has 8,000,000 Ordinary shares of 5p and
16,000,000 ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares of 5p each
in 1ssue The Ordinary shareholders are entitled to one
vote per Ordinary share held The ‘A' non-voting Ordinary
shares do not entitle the holders to vote or receve notice
of meetings, but in all ather respects they have the same
nights as the Company's Qrdinary shares

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2013 and 21 June 2013 the Directors were
aware of the interests on page 17 in the Ordinary shares
of the Company, which exceeded 3% of the voting 1ssued
share capital of that class

The following information 15 disclosed In accordance
with the Companies Act 2006 and DTR 7 2 6 of the FCA
Disclosure and Transparency Rules

The Company’s capital structure and voting rights are
summarised above and in note 16 on page 54

* The giving of powers to 1ssue or buy back the
Company’s shares requires an appropnate resglution
to be passed by shareholders Proposals for the
renewal of the Board’s powers to buy back shares are
set out In the Notice of the Annual General Meeting
on page 60

* There are no restnctions concerning the transfer
of secunities in the Cempany, no special nghts with
regard to control attached to securities, no agreements
between holders of securnities regarding their transfer
known to the Company and no agreements to which
the Company 15 party that might affect 1ts control
following a takeover bid
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Peter Pearman & Codan Trust Company Limited

Of the shares held by Peter Pearman & Codan Trust
Company Limited, Mr Salomon 1s interested in 2,069,425
and Mrs Townsend Is Interested In 2,069,425, each holding
representing 25 9% of the voting share capital Inaddition,

BOARD STATEMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

No of % of
voting shares voting shares
4,138,850 517

Mr Salomon has further interests in the Company's shares,
the total imterest 1s detailed in the Directors’ interests
section below

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and Financial
Conduct Authority UKLA Listing Rules, the Board 1s
required to make the following statements and disclosures
to shareholders

Directors and Directors’ Interests

The present members of the Board are shown on page
11 The Board's policy is that all Directors retire annually
All Directors being eligible, at the forthcoming Annual

General Meeting Mr Hammond Chambers, Mr Salomon
and Professor Wood will retire and seek re-election In
accordance with the Board's policy Lord Oxford and Mr
Dawvie, having been appommted subsequent to the last
Annual General Meeting will retire and seek election In
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Assoctation
The interests of Directors and their connected parties n
the Company at 31 March 2013 are shown below

Ordinary ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary Nature of
shares of 5p each shares of 5p each interest
2013 2012 2013 2012

Mr Hammond-Chambers 500 500 10,600 7,600 Beneficial
Mr Davie 4,000 - 6,000 - Beneficial
Lord Oxford - - - - -
Mr Salomon 2,113,219 2,113,219 98,700 98,700 Beneficial
Professor Wood 6,000 6,000 8,500 8,000 Beneficial

Mr Salomon is the senior partner of Hansa Capital Partners
LLP Fees payable to Hansa Capital Partners LLP amounted
to £1,611,643 (2012 £1,664,666) The fees outstanding
at the year end amounted to £145,215 (2012 £142,544)
Dunng the year, no nights to subscnbe to the shares of the
Company, were granted to, or exercised by Directors, their
spouses or infant chuldren

Fixed Asset Investments

The market value of the Group’s investments at 31 March
2013 was £262,403,000 (2012 £270,944,000) Taking these
mvestments at this valuation, the net assets attributable to
each Ordinary and A’ non-voting Crdinary share amounted
to 1,082 9p at 31 March 2013 (2012 1,117 5p)

Creditors’ Payment Policy

While the Company does not follow a formal code, 1t 1s
the Company's cantinuing policy to pay amounts due
to creditors as and when they become due At 31 March
2013 the number of creditor days were Nil (2012 Nil}

Payments relating to investment transactions are made in
accordance with the settlement practices of the relevant
exchange At 31 March 2013 outstanding trade creditors
amounted to £N11 (2012 £Nil)

Directors’ and Officers’ Indemnity and Liabality Insurance

The Company through its Articles has indemnified its
Directors and Qfficers to the fullest extent permissible by law

During the year the Company also purchased and maintained
hability insurance for its Directors and Officers

Going Concern

The Company's business activities, together with the
factors likely to affectits future development, performance
and position, inctuding its financial position, are set out
in the Chairman’s Statement, Investment Manager's
Review and Business Review After due consideration of
the balance sheet, activibes of the Company, estimated
labiMities for the next 12 months and having made
appropriate enquines, the Directors have concluded that
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the Company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future as the
assets of the Group consist of secunties, the majority of
which are traded on recogmsed stock exchanges For this
reason, they continue to adopt the going concern hasis in
preparing the financial statements

Status and Activities

Dunng the year under review the Company has operated
as an investment company In compbance with Section 833
of the Companies Act 2006 and Sections 1158/1159 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010 The Company has receved
approval as an investment trust from HM Revenue & Customs
for the financial year to 31 March 2012, but this does not
preclude asubsequent enquiry from bemg raised The Company
has received confirmation from HM Revenue & Customs of its
status as an Approved Investment Trust for financial penods
commencing after 1 Apnl 2012, subject to it continuing to
comply with the requirements of Sections 1158/1159 There
has been ne significant change in the actiities of the Company
and 1ts subsidiary (the ‘Group’} dunng the year and the
Directors anticipate the Group will continue to operate im the
same manner during the current year

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Audit Information

The Directors confinm that, so far as they are aware having
made such enguines and having taken such steps as they
consider they reasonably ought, they have provided the
Auditor with all the information necessary for it to be able to
prepare its report In doing so each Director has made himself
aware of anyinformation relevant to the audit and established
that the Company’s Auditor 1s aware of that imformation The
Directors are not aware of any nformation relevant to the
audit of which the Company’s Auditor1s unaware

Soclal, Community,
Environmental Policy

Employee Responsibilities and

The Company does not have any employees As an
investment trust, the Company has no direct scaal,
community, or environmental impact Its princtpal
responsibility to shareholders 1s to ensure the investment
portfolio 1s properly invested and managed

Corporate Governance

The Corporate Governance Statement on pages 19 to 22
forms part of this Report of the Directors

Special resolutions relating to the following items will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM

(o) Authonity to re purchase ‘A’ non voting Ordinary shares

Aresolutionwiltbe proposedat the forthcoming AGM, seeking
shareholder approval for the renewal of the authonty for the
Company to re purchase its own ‘A’ non-voting Qrcinary
shares The Board believes the ability of the Company to
re-purchase its own ‘A’ non-veting Ordinary shares i the
market could potentially benefit all equity shareholders of
the Company and be a useful tool with which the Board could
reduce the discount n the long-term The re purchase of ‘A’
non-voting Ordinary shares at a discount to the underlying
NAV would enhance NAV per share of the remaiming equity
shares

The Company's Articles are drafted in such a way that the
Company may from time to time purchase and cancel its own
shares However, company law requires that shareholders’
approval to re-purchase shares be sought At the AGM the
Company will therefore seek the authonty to purchase up
to 2,398,400 ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares (representing
14 99% of the Company’s i1ssued A’ non-voting Ordinary
share capital, the maximum permitted under the Listing Rules
of the Financial Conduct Authority), at a price not less than
5p per share {the nominal value of each share) and not more

than 5% above the average of the middle-market quotations
for the five business days preceding the day of purchase or,
where a serles of transactions have taken place the higher of
the last independent trade and current highest (independent
bid on the trading venue where the purchase(s)will be carred
out The authorty being sought, the full text of which can be
found in Resolution 9 in the Notice of Meeting, will last until
the date of the next AGM

It 15 proposed the Company uses its realised capital reserve
to re-purchase shares in the market The decision as to
whether the Company re-purchases any shares wili be at
the absolute discretion of the Board Any shares purchased
will be cancelted The Directors consider that the creation of
a facility to re-purchase the Company's own ‘A’ non-voting
Ordinary shares 15 tn the interests of shareholders as a
whole and unanimously recommend alt shareholders to vote
in favour by ticking the appropnate boxes on the enclosed
form of proxy The Proxy Form should be returned to the
Company’'s Registrar as soon as possible, but in any event so
asto arnive no later than 48 hours before the time of the AGM

P o)™

By arder of the Board
Hansa Capital Partners LLP
Secretary

21 June 2013
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This statement forms part of the Report of the Directors
Internal Controls

The UK Corporate Governance Code {*UK Code™), which can
be found on the website of the Financial Reporting Council
{www frc org uk) requires the Directors to review the
effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal contrals
on an annual basis The Directors, through the procedures
outhned below, keep the system of nsk management and
internal controls under review The Board has identfied
risk management controls in the key areas of business
objectives, accounting, complance, operations
secretanal as areas for the extended review

and

The Board recogrises Its ultimate responsibility for the
Company's system of internal controls and for monitaring
its effectiveness In order to perform this responsibility
the Board receives regular reports on all aspects of
internal control from the Company's service providers
(including financial, operattonal and compliance controls,
nsk management and relationships with other service
providers), the Board will authorise necessary action in
response to any significant failings or weaknesses identified
by these reports However, it must be noted that this system
15 designed to manage rather than eliminate the nsk of
failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasenable and not absolute assurance agamst matenal
mis-statement or loss

Financial Reporting

The Board has a responsibility to present a batanced
and understandable assessment of annual, half-yearly
and other price sensitive public reports and reports to
regulators, as well as to provide information required to be
presented by statutory requirements All such reports are
reviewed and approved by the Board pnior to their issue to
ensure this responsibibity 1s fulfilled

Compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code

The Board has considered the prinaiples and
recornmendations of the AIC Code of Corporate
Governance (*AIC Code™) by reference to the AIC Corporate
Governance Guide for Investment Companies (“AIC
Guide™ The AIC Code, as explained by the AIC Guide,
addresses all the principles of the UK Code, as well as
sefting out additicnal pnnciples and recommendations
on 1ssues of speafic relevance to Hansa Trust PLC The
Board confirms 1t follows the UK Code, except for those
areas which the AIC Guide i1dentifies as being irrelevant in
a non-self-managed investment company namely the role

of the chef executive, executive director's remuneration
and the need for an internal aud:it function

The Board confirms, with the exception of the composition
of the Audit Committee as detailed on page 22 and the
existence of a Senior Independent Director, that it has in all
respects followed the AIC Code tn meeting 1ts obligations
under the Listing Rules and the UK Code The AIC Code can
be found on its website at www theaic co uk

The AIC Code has 21 principles, the vast majonty of which
the Board has been following for many years However,
modern corporate governance requires that boards not
only govern their companies sensibly and responsibly, but
that they are seen to do so Hence there I1s a requirement
to follow a check hst of principles, which in our case 1s
drawn from the AIC Code They include

The Board
¢«  The Chairman should be independent

Mr Hammond-Chambers has been assessed by the
Board to be independent

« A majority of the Board should be independent of
the Manager

Allthe Directors are subjectto anannualindependence
review and with the exception of Mr Salomon, who 1s
a partner of the Investment Manager, all are adjudged
to be independent and to have performed thetr duties
n an independent manner

*  Directors should be elected for a fixed term of no more
than three years Nomination for re-election should
not be assumed but be based on disclosed procedures

All Directors resign at each AGM and where
appropnate offer themselves for re-election

+  There should be full disclosure of information about
the Board

A bnef biography of each member of the Board can
be found on page 11 The Company Chairman does
chair the Audit and Remuneration Committees as
the Company considers he 1s the most appropriately
qualified person on the Committees to fulfil these roles

+ The Board should have a policy on tenure which 1s
disclosed in the Annual Report

The Board has determined that neither age nor length
of service necessanly compromise independence,
rather that experience and knowledge gained in service
normally strengthen independent performance All
Directors have contracts for services, details of which
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are contained i the Directors’ Remuneration Report on
page 39

The Board should aim to have a balance of skills and
experience, ages and length of service

The Board regularly reviews its requirements to
direct the affairs of the Company Where and when
appropniate, individuals are identified who would
strengthen the Board and put forward as candidates
for Board membership

The Board should undertake a formal and nigorous
annual evaluation of its own performance and that of
its committees and indviduat Directors

The Board undertakes a formal wntten evaluation
every three years The other years the Board, at its
strategy meeting, carnes out an evaluation of the
imdependence of each Director by means of a wntten
response from each Director on his fellow Directors,
the progress of the actions resulting from the previous
reviews and of any new ideas forimproving the returns
to shareholders, by enhancing the effectiveness of the
Board The Chairman s evaluated by an independent
Director on behalf of the Board

Directors' remuneration should reflect their dutles
and responsibilities and the value of their time spent

The level of Directors’ fees 1s monitored annually and
formally reviewed every three years, 1n hight of the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities and the value of
the bime commuitted to the interests of the Company,
note 15 taken of fees paid by other comparable
companies

The Independent Directors should take a lead in
the appeintment of new Directors and the process
should be disclosed In the Annual Report

The identification and appointment of a new Board
member s a matter for the whole Board The Chairman
as the senior independent director 15 charged with
taking the iead in all of the processes with respect to
the appointment of a new Director

Directors should be offered relevant training and
induction

When a new Director 1s appointed, hefshe attends
an induction seminar held by the Company Secretary
and the Chairman Directors are also provided on a
regular basis with industry, regulatory and investment
updates Directors regularly participate in industry
seminars and training courses where appropriate

Board meetings and the relationship with the Manager

Boards and Managers should operate in asupportive,
co-operative and open environment

The Board 1s primarily responsible for the running
of the Company and maintains spectfic duties and
responsibilities Where the Board has delegated
certain duties to the Investment Manager, the Board
and the Manager operate in an environment of mutual
trust and respect, both at formal Board meetings and
dunng the year when ad hoc communications are
instigated by erther party

The primary focus at regular Board meetings
should be the review of the investment performance
and assoclated matters such as gearing, asset
allocation, marketing/investor relations, peer group
information and industry Issues

At the regular Board meetings, discussions are held
and reports and papers are reviewed, all of which
caver the above mentioned aspects

Boards should gwe sufficient attention to overall
strategy

The Board holds an annual strategy meeting wtth the
Manager to discuss the Company's future investment
and corporate strategies

The Board should regularly review both the
perfermance of and contractual arrangements with
the Manager

The Board formally reviews the performance of the
Manager each quarter, at which Board meeting the
Manager presents a wniten report At the annual
review of the Manager all aspects of its service to the
Board are reviewed, particularly the long-term returns
to shareholders and the terms and conditions of its
contract

The Board should agree policies with the Manager
covering key operational issues

Within the agreement, service levels are defined
between the Manager and the Company In addition
the Board determines certain investment restrictions
and guidelines for the Manager, on which the Manager
reports monthly

Boards should monitor the level of share price
discount or premium (if any) and, if desirable, take
action to reduce it

The Board continually monitors the levels of discount
or premwum and comments on it at its regular

20




CORPORATE (GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued:

meetings The Board also seeks authority to purchase
up to 14 99% of the Company's ‘A’ non voting
Ordinary shares at the Company's AGM

* The Board should monitor and evaluate the other
service providers

The Board, through its Audit Committee, receives
independent reports from the auditors of the mam
semvice providers, these reports are called either AAF
01/06 or ISAE3402 reports

Shareholder Communication

*  The Board should regularly monitor the shareholder
profile of the Company and put in ptace a system for
canvassing shareholderviews and forcommunicating
the Board’s views to sharehotders

The Board reviews the shareholder profite at
its regular meetings The Company, through its
Investment Manager and the Company Secretary,
has regular contact with its shareholders The Board
supports the principle that the AGM should be used
to communicate with all shareholders and promotes
Its website to them The Company Secretary and
where appropriate the Chairman, regularly receive
and handle communications from shareholders
These communtcations are receved by letter, email or
telephone Any matter requiring the Board's attention
15 referred to it for action

¢+ The Board should normally take responsibitity for
and have a direct involvement in, the content of
communications regarding major corporate 1ssues
even if the Manager is asked to act as spokesman

The Board 1s responsible for all major corporate
1ssues and as such would have a direct involvement in
both the 1ssue and the content of its commumications

*  The Board should ensure shareholders are provided
with sufficient information for them to understand
the risk reward balance to which they are exposed
by holding the shares

The Board, through the issuance of the Annual
and Half Yearly Reports, Interim Management
Statements and Monthly Fact Sheets, aims to ensure
both shareholders and prospective shareholders
are made fully aware of the investment aims and
benchmark of the Company, the types of investments
the Company 1s Likely to enter into, the disposition of
those investments in the portfolio, the gearing of the
Company and the period over which its performance
should be judged

UK Stewardship Code

The aim of the Stewardship Code, which was published by
the Financial Reporting Councitin July 2010, 15 to enhance the
quality of engagement between institutional investors and
companies, to helpimprove long-term returns to shareholders
and the efficent exercise of governance responsibilities

The seven principles of the Code are that Institutional
investors should

*  Publicly disclose thewr policy on how they will
discharge their stewardship responsibilities

*  Haveand publicly disclose arobust policy on managing
conflicts of interest in refation to stewardship

*  Monitor their investee companies

* Establish clear guidelines on when and how they will
escalate their activities as a method of protecting and
enhancing shareholder value

*  Be willing to act collectively with other investors
where appropriate

*  Have a clear policy on voting and disclosure of voting
activity

* Report periodically on therr stewardship and voting
activities

Discharging stewardship responsibilities

The Company has delegated to its Investment Manager,
Hansa Capital Partners LLP, the day to day operaticns of
the Company’s policy which is as follows

To operate a due diligence process when considering any
investment The process includes a number of key factors
in the establishment of whether an investment 15 suitable
forits portfolio and will include

* Competent management

*  Likelihood of offering an acceptable return for the nsk
undertaken

*  Financat and structural soundness
*  Regular reporting
*  Sound business plans

* Comphance with current gevernance and regulatory
requirements

Full details of these can he found on the Investment
Manager's website www hansagrp com
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The Investment Manager will engage the Board on controversial matters ansing from the operations of the policy

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Directors consider that in order for them to fulfill their
responsibibities as Directors of the Company, all members
of the Board should be members of all sub committees,
except where there 15 a deemed conflict of interest

Details of the Directors’ attendance at Board, Strategy
and Audit Commitiee meetings are in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on page 39

Audit Committee

The Boarddoesnotconsiderthe establishmentofaninternal
audit function appropnate for the size and complexity of
the organisation The Audit Committee consists of all five
Drrectors and 1s assisted by MrTeideman, a former divector,
whose skills and expenience strengthen the Committee
The Committee is chaired by Mr Hammond-Chambers,
and although the UK code and AIC code are against the
company chairman being the chair of the Audit Commuttee,
the Board considers Mr Hammond Chambers to be the
best qualified for this role The Smeth Report's guidance
emphasises the need for Audit Committee arrangements
to be proportionate to the task With such a small Board,
it was deemed both proportionate and practical to mvalve
all Directors 1in its workings, even though Mr Salomon 15
not regarded as being independent

The Company’s Audit Committee meets representatives of
the Investment Manager and its Comphance Officer, who
report as to the proper conduct of business in accordance
withthe regulatory environment inwhich boththe Company
and the Investment Manager operate The Company's
Auditor also attends this Committee and reports on its
work procedures, the quality and effectiveness of the
Company’s accounting records and its findings in relation
to the Company’s statutory audit The responsibilities
of the Audit Committee include reviewing the ternal
controls, the financial reporting process, the valuation
of the unguoted investments, the management contract,
the statutory audit and the Auditor's appointment,
remuneration and independence (no non-audit services
other than a review of the half yearly report are provided
by the Auditor) The Board has issued the Committee with
Terms of Reference which are available from the Company
Secretary at the registered address of the Company

Following careful consideration of the independence,
expertence and value for money of the current Auditor,
the Audit Committee has recommended that the Board
propose the re-appointment of Grant Thernten UK LLP as
Auditor to the Company

Nomination Committee

The Board as a whole fulfils the function of the Nomination
Committee Appointments are made on ment and agamst
objective criteria in accordance with the UK Corporate
Govenance Code The Board consider, it 1s of paramount
importance to shareholders that, after consideration of the
skills and experience needed by the Board, candidates are
chosen ¢n the basis of ment only and that there should
be no discnmination in the chowce of directors for any
reason, be it gender, race, religion, etc The Company’s
Articles of Association require newly appointed Directors
to submit themselves for election by shareholders at the
next AGM after appointment and that they will be subject
to re-election at intervals of no more than three years
However, the Board has determined that all Directors will
retire and offer themselves for re-election each year at the
AGM

Management Engagement Committee

The Board, with the exception of Mr Salomon, fulfills the
function of this Committee The level of management
fees, level of service provided and the performance of
the Manager are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure
that these remain competitive and in the best interests of
shareholders

Remuneration Committee

The Board fulfils the funchon of a Remuneration
Committee and considers that the specific appointment
of such a committee 1s not appropnate for an investment
trust company The level of Directors’ fees 1s monitored
annually and formally reviewed every three years on a
regular basis in the light of their duties and also relative to
other comparable companies
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’

R ESPONSIBILITIES

In discharging s responsibibties of stewardship the
Board i1s governed by the Companies Act and the Financial
Conduct Authonty UKLA Listing Rules

Under UK Company Law the Directors are responsible for
ensuring that

* Adequate accounting records are kept, that are
sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006

s The assets of the Company are safeguarded, and
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detectton of fraud and other irregulanties

* The Report of the Directors and other information
included in the Annual Report 1s prepared In
accordance with Company Law in the UK The Directors
are also responsible for ensuring the Annual Report
includes iformation required by the Listing Rules of
the Financial Conduct Authority

* The Company has effective internal control systems,
designed to ensure that adequate accounting records
are maintained, that the financial informatign on
which the business decisions are made and which are
1ssued for pubhcation 1s reliable Such a system of
internal cantrol can provide only reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against matenal mis-statement
or loss

*  The Group Financtal Statements for each financial year
are prepared 1n accordance with IFRS, as adopted by
the EU and have elected to prepare Company financial
statements on the same basis Under Company Law
directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs and profit or loss of the
Company for that period In prepanng these financial
statements the Directors are required to

O select suitable accounting policies and apply
them consistently,

© make judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

© state whether they have been prepared n
accordance with {FRS as adopted by the EU, and

O prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis, unless 1t 1s nappropnate to
presume the Company and Group will continue in
business

Under the Financial Conduct Authority, UKLA Listing Rules
and the UK Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”), the
Board 1s responsible for

*  Disclosing how 1t has applied the pnnciples and
complied with the provisions of the Code, or where
not to explain the reasons for divergence

¢ Reviewing the effecuveness of the Company's
systems of nsk management and internal controls

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integnty of the corporate and financial information
inctuded on the Company’s website www hansatrust com
Visitors to the website need to be aware that legislation
in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
the financial statements may differ from legislationin their
own Jurisdictions

Responsibility Statement
The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge

¢ The financial statements, prepared in accordance with
applicable international accounting standards, give a
true and faw view of the assets, bhabilities, financial
position and profit or loss of the Company

* The Charrman's Statement and the Repont of the
Directors include a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the
Company, together with a descriptign of the principal
nisks and uncertainties it faces

For and on behalf of the Board
Alex Hammond-Chambers
Chairman

21 June 2013
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t INVESTMENT STYLE

* There s a disconnect between investors, often short-
term and herd-like and compantes, which should be
managed for now and eternity A long-term investor
can take advantage of this disconnect

*  We aim to find great companies which we can remain
invested in for a long period of time, altowing us to
compound our mvestment

*  We prefer to spend most of our time focusing on the
underlying companies in the portfolio

|LINVESTMENT CRITERIA

*  Long only, patient, very low turnover, give things time

*  Leverage reduces the investor's cntical asset, namely
patience

*  We have been there for the cash bids Glenmorangie,
Warner Chitcott, RMC, WH Smuth, Foseco, Salvesen,
Xansa, Biffa, Kiln, Cathedral Underwniting, Resolution,
Halladale, Delta, Brit Insurance and SSL Intl

* A share pnice reflects a collection of future earnings
expectations, where company management has
the single largest control over the direction of this
earnings stream  Good management/self-help
Management interests should be aligned with those
of minonty shareholders

* London quoted companies with a strong position
in their home markets, who have the world as therr
market place, not just Europe PWC forecasts that by
2050 the largest European economies of France and
Germany will be ranked 9th and 10th globally, with
the UK falling to 11th place Compamies will need
to be trading with emerging economies, mcluding
Mexico, Brazil and Indonesia Companies with global
reach will be beneficiaries of weak Sterling

*  Companes with market leading positions and strong
brands, which can grow sales organically, enjoy
revenue predictability and wisibility, have pricing
power to protect margins against nsing input prices,

|_BACKGROUND

generate a good return on invested capital and return
cash to shareholders in the form of a dividend, which
grows In real terms over time

* Companies with the ability to grow by investing their
free cash flows at attractive rates of return, either in
their awn business, through M&A or share buy backs

* Companies that have a moat around thew business
because their advantages are difficult to replicate A
moat allows a company to weather downturns as well
as keeping others from entenng that business

e Companies that are resiient to change, particularly
unexpected technological innovation

* Generally prefer companies which sell to other
companies (“B to B™), rather than companies which
sell to the consumer (“B to )

* Wary of companies which are largely dependent
on the developed world consumer or public sector
spending

More than anything else it was Manio Draghi's July 2012
pledge to “do whatever it takes” to save the Euro which
boosted investors’ nsk appetite and saw the start of a
move out of the supposedly safe haven of bonds into
equittes The ECB pledged to purchase an “unlimited”
quantity of government bonds with a remaining matunty of
up to three years to remove the tail nsk of a country being
forced out of the Euro, in an operation named Outnght
Monetary Transactions (“OMT"), buying more time for the
Eurozene However the ltalan election and the US$10bn
bail-out of Cyprus are a stark reminder that the Eurozone
15 still undergoing a financial, economic ang political
cnisis of massive proportions and that the members of the

Eurozone need to adjust more symmetncally poltically
and econamically if they are to preserve monetary union,
as they are a long way from the full fiscal and banking
unign that would be required to save the Euro Rather,
relations between creditor and debtor nations are becoming
increasingly fractious as the penpheral countnes are
breken on the deflationary wheel The root of the problem
in Cyprus hes in the fact that its banks are bust and need
recapitalising and that the cost of recapitabising them is
significantly greater than the size of the domestic economy
In the absence of devaluation, which helps to wnite down
debt and promote a growth in exports to compensate for
domestic fiscal tightening, Cyprus was forced to seek
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external assistance, otherwise it would have been unable to
bail out its banks or guarantee deposits in Euros, meaning
it would have been forced to leave the Eurozone and print
Its own currency Austerity increases debt and bailouts only
transfer them, rather than recognising and writing them off
Te quote one economist, “Cyprus has destroyed the illusion
that Germanic northern taxpayers will pay whatever it costs
to save the Euro” and the Trotka (IMF, ECB and European
Commussion} has increased concerns about how safe retail
deposits are in the Eurozone, when a banking cr1s1s 15 too
big for a government to handle on its own Although Cyprus
15 an extreme case, an over-leveraged banking system
with insufficrent capital and reliance on foreign funding 1s
all too familrar terntory in the Euozone Anogther reminder
that debt busts are deflationary and economic recoveries
that follow financial recessions are much weaker, slower
and mere erratic than those that follow non-financial
recessions, as the necessary process of deleveraging drags
on Sustamed high unemployment s also par for the course
over the extended duration of post financial recovenes,
with the latest figures showing that 12% of the Eurozone's
total population I1s unemployed, a nse of more than a
percentage point since February last year, when 10 9%
were out of work Europe must ultimately grow its way out
of 1ts cnsis, which requires the restoration of the flow of
credit to businesses and households, which first requires
re capitalising Europe’s banking system, as banks will only
start to lend once more if they have sufficient capital and
liquidity Europe has little hope of enjoying a meaningful
and sustainable recovery in the foreseeable future, reeling
with austenty fatigue instead and the growth challenge for
Italy, France and other members of the Eurozone continues
as they rely on lower wages, unemployment and austenty to
restore competitiveness, an “internal” devaluation, rather
than “external™ one via a weaker currency

Despite this, equity markets have continued to make
progress as the global economy as a whole remains on an
improving tack andis forecast to grow 3 2% (Deutsche Bank)
this year, with Advanced Economies growing by 2 1% and
Emerging Econormes by 6 1%, with the dnving force being
the gradually improving performance of the US economy
which appears to be gaining momentum and is expected
to grow by 23% A central theme t5 the fundamental
role being played by massive central bank balance sheet
expansien and highly accommodative monetary policies
in the US, Europe and Japan, with other central banks
adopting US style monetary policies to priontise jobs and
growth Easy money/financial repression Is restraining
interest rate increases and fuelling asset prices and 15
partly responsible for the re rating of equity markets When

a central bank 15 unable to provide stimulus by cutting
interest rates further, because they have already been
reduced to zero, or near-zero levels, it creates new money
electronically which I1s used to buy financial assets in the
secondary market, normally government bonds The theory
15 that the money will work its way through the financial
system and ulbimately raise spending by bouseholds and
firms, thereby helping the process of recovery Eventually,
when economic growth has become self-sustaiming, the
money creation programme can in theory be unwound and
maore nermal policies can resume Bank cnises are brought
about by solvency problems across banking systems, as
banks attempt to repair their balance sheets, shninking the
quantumofrisk assets ontheir balance sheets and imposing
tight monetary policy conditions on the rest of the economy,
breaking the monetary transmission mechanism untii such a
time as the banks' balance sheets are nd of their concealed
losses The problem mn the Eurozone, UK and Japan 1s that
there has been no discermible increase in lending to the
non-banking sector Instead banks have been piling up
government bonds and JGBs on their balance sheets The
transmission mechamsm, bank lending, 1s broken Cyprus
clearly demonstrates the absence of any solutions except
profoundly unattractive ones, like a controversial levy on
bank accounts, or the one easy one, namely “pnnting”
While both the US, the UK and now Japan are committed to
Quantitative Easing, Europe has thus farrestraimed from this
policy action Despite the marked economic deterioration
across the Eurozone and with France reaching the imits of
its decades long expenment in state-run welfare capttatism,
the ECB continues to avoid using 1ts OMT/European Stability
Mechamism (“ESM”} bazooka In Cyprus’s case an allance
of hard-line creditors said the ESM, or bail out fund, could
not be used to cover “legacy assets” from past banking
cnses, so rather than recapitalising Cypnot banks directly
via the ESM, the Troika resorted to a more traditional way
to dea! with insolvent banks in Cyprus Maybe the OMT/
ESM bazooka is in practice unworkable after all and Mario
Draght's pledge to “do whatever 1t takes” 1s no more than
a game of “high stakes bluff and counter-bluff In the
meantime European banks have yet to shnink their quantum
of nsk assets, which in turn will deflate the broad money
stock and with few alternative options open to the ECB the
Cyprus debacle may have brought the start date forward
Mass wnte-downs, aggressive quantitative easing and
ending the austenty obsession might be the only way to
save the Euro Even then we would probably stitl be looking
at a group of Eurozone countnes locked together at wholly
inappropnate bilateral real exchange rates
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(_LOVERALL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the Ordinary and “A” Ordinary
share pnces fell by 9 0% and 6 6% respectively, compared
with a nse of 12 6% in the FTSE All-Share Index, as both
classes of shares traded at a wider discount to their net asset
value The time weighted return of the portfolio was -0 85%,
compared with a nse of 3 8% in the Company's benchmark
and a nse of 17 4% in the FTSE All-Share Index-Total Return

The year under review has been a difficult one for Brazl,
evidenced bya 12 7% fallin the BOVESPA benchmark index
Brazil's economic future does not look nearly as bnght as its
recent past Since 2010, when the country registered GDP
growth of 7 5%, its economy has slowed dramatically in
2011 the country's GDP growth reached only 2 7% and while
GDP growth forecasts for 2012 began the year at 3 5%, the
final outcome was 1 3%, as the Braziban economy proved to
be harder to manage, with simultaneous concerns involving
weak growth and inflation and the government adopting
measures to fight both Against this background the central
bank cut the selic interest rate to a record low 7 25%, from a
peak of 12 5% in August 2011 and launched a new package
of fiscal incentives to stimulate growth, including allowing
reserve requirements to be used tofinance some credit ines,
as well as announcing new airport concessions At the same
time the government 15 worned about inflauon pressures
and a heated labour market, with low unemployment rates
and a significant nse in real average income helping to
support a good level of consumer spending The central
bank implemented a number of measures to avoid currency
depreciation, which included the removal of some capital
controls that had been introduced previously as well as
seling US$ in the denvatives market and signaling its
intent to masntain the current level of interest rates for a
sufficiently long penocd

| SECTOR WEIGHTING AND PERFORMANCE

The most abvious cause of Brazil's poor economic outlook
1s the collapse of the commodities boom, with the country’s
exports to China decreasing by more than half during the
first six months of 2012 Growing Brazilian protectionism is
also making Brazilian products increasingly less competitive
and these protectionist policies need to be reversed, by
implementing long-delayed labour, tax and education
reforms n order to reduce the cost of doing business
in Brazil and address some of the country’s supply side
weaknesses while increasing the country’s international
competitiveness A decade of economic growth has
seen the emergence of a new lower-middle class that
increasingly expects better standards of education, secunty
and infrastructure The labour market remains tight, with
unemployment neanng only 5% and inflation expectations
are only loosely anchored While concerns in Brazil focus on
the slowing demand for the country’s exports, others worry
that domestic [abour costs are now outstnipping productivity
gains and feel that a more substantial rebalancing of the
economy 1s In order The ad hoc measures to stimulate
certain economic sectors and a mynad of capital controls
and trade barners could raise uncertainty and endanger
investment, undermining long-term growth Investor
appetite has waned, which has taken its toll on the short-
term pnice performance of Ocean Wilsons Holdings Limited

In addition, we suffered a number of setbacks in some of
our other top ten holdings, including Hargreaves Services,
Cape, Kofax, Andor and BG Group which are covered under
the individual company commentanes Some ground
was re captured in the second half of the year with Cape
and Hargreaves Services recovenng by 30% and 23%
respectively Finally and on a technical note, the Hansa “A”
Ordinary non-voting shares exited the FTSE All-Share index

Sector Weighting

at 31 March 2013
Sector %
Strategic 374
Smaller Cap/AIM 17 8
Natural Resources 118
Property 78
Large Cap 151
Utilities 24
Mid Cap 58
Investment Trusts 31
Cash & Cash Funds 12)

Sector Weighting  Twelve months’ Performance
at 31 March 2012 at 31 March 2013
% %

410 Y

204 (14 5)

126 59

62 220

119 273

20 220

4 4 341

27 106

12 a7
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in July, which saw some index selling of the “A” Ordinary
non-voting shares in thin markets, causing a huge prnicing

| NEWS UPDATES FROM TOP HOLDINGS

dispanty with the Hansa Ordinary voting shares which have
the same economic interest and will remain in the Index

The 25 heldings listed below each represent 1% or more of
Net Asset Value and 98 1% of Net Asset Value combined
Details are provided in respect to each company's market
capitalisation, the proportion of NAY the holding represents
and the stock’s performance over the year to 31 March
2013

OCEAN WILSONS HOLDINGS LIMITED (Mkt Cap £367 8m
37 4% NAV Performance -98%) 15 a Bermuda based
ivestment company and through its subsidiary operates
as a maritime services company in Brazil The company 1s
listed on both the Bermuda Stock Exchange and the London
Stock Exchange and has two principal subsidianes Wilson
Sons Limited (58 25% owned), 1s an autonomous Bermuda
company listed on the Sao Paulo Stock Exchange and the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange Wilson Sons is one of the
largest providers of mantime services in Brazil, with activities
including harbour and ocean towage, container terminal
operations, offshore support services, logistics, smallvessel
construction and ship agency Qcean Wilsons {Investments}
Limited (wholly owned) 15 a Bermuda investment company,
holding a portfolio of International investments managed by
Hanseatic Asset Management LBG, a Guernsey registered
and regulated investment manager

Ocean Wilsons Hoeldings Ltd, Ffirst half income was
negatively affected by a combination of the depreciation
of the Real against the US Dollar, constrained cabotage
and transhipment volumes, the end of the Petrobas public
port operatien in Rio de Janeiro, increased depreciation
{which 1s US Dollar denominated} and increased employee
expenses from headcount for pre operational hiring and
share based payment expenses The full year figures to the
end of December 2012 show that Wilson Sons continues to
invest heavily 1n growing 1ts business, with the expansion
of the Tecon Salvador container terminal successfully
concluded in the year and the new shipyard in Guaruja
due to complete n Apnt 2013, doubling shipbuilding
capaclty and allowing for increased third party vessel
construction and maintenance services, as well as
significantly enhancing the ability to grow the Wilson Sons
Ultratug Offshore (50% owned) fleet of offshore platform
supply vessels Five more platform supply vessels are
due to be delivered in to the joint venture this year, four
of them being built m Wilson Sons' shipyards The joint
venture fleets now comprises five offshore vessels under
construction and 17 n gperation, with 14 cwned and three

AHTS ship management contracts Wilson Sons estimates
that by the end of 2015 its offshore supply vessel fleet will
have grown to around 24 vessels and then 34 vessels by
2017, placing it in the top four Braziian OSV operators

The acquisition of the Briclog offshore supply base in the
ity of Rio de Janeiro for R$125m1s expected to complete
this year Debt, used tc finance shipyard capacity and
vessel construction, the development of the two container
termunals and equipment for logistics amounted to
US$431 4m at year end, with an average cost of 3 6% pa,
as 75% of the total 1s subsidised debt, provided through
BNDES and Banco do Brasil as agents for the Fundo da
Marnnha Mercante (FMM), the Merchant Manne Fund 92%
of debt 1s long-term and 95% of 1t 1s US$ denominated

Wilson Sons announced 1t has received US$135m funding
FMM to butld 12 new tugboats during the next three years,
a mixture of replacements and additional capacity to meet
the demand driven by growth in the ol and gas industry
and nternational trade flow and all of them will be built
in the Guaruja shipyards Group revenue for the full year
was 8% lower, due principally to lower port terminal
and logistics revenue and the higher average US$/BRD
exchange rate during the year which is used to convert
the income statement The Group reports in US$ and has
revenue, costs, assets and labilities in both BRD and US$,
50 movements in the US$/BRD exchange rate can impact
the Group both positively and negatively from year to year

About two thirds of group revenues are denominated 1n
BRD Over the full year 2012 BRD depreciated 9% agamst
the US$, while the average US$/BRD exchange rate durning
the year was 17% higher A higher average exchange
rate adversely impacts BRD denominated revenues and
benefits BRD denominated costs when converted into the
US$ reporting currency, while any strengthening of the
US$% against Sterling increases the translational value of
underlying assets Net cash flow from operating activities
for the year at US$115 6m was US$45 1m higher than the
pnier year, principally due to 1mproved working capital
movements

The investment portfolio (100% owned) produced a time
weighted return of 8 8% over the year and the portfolio
at year end was pnincipally invested in global equities,
52%, 21% in private assets, 10% in market neutral funds
and the balance of 17% in bonds, cash and Lquidity
funds, Emerging markets accounted for 44% of the
portfolio’s net asset value The portfolio contains a high
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level of investments which would not normally be readily
accessible to the average mvestor Furthermore, a large
number of holdings are closed to new investors

Ocean Wilsons Holdings paid a total dvidend of 42¢
{2012 33c) for the year, a nse of 27% The dwidend for
the year represents the full dwdend to be received from
Wilson Sans relating to 2012, plus 1 85% of the average
capital empleyed in the investment portfolie, a figure
which 15 determined annually by the hoard Dwvidends
are set in US$ and to date have been paid twice yearly
From 2013 onwards a single combined final dividend will
be paid, which will not impact the total dvidend pay-out
for the year The beard of directors may review and amend
the dividend policy from time to time in hight of future
plans and other factors The payment of dividends cannct
be guaranteed and may be discontinued or vaned at the
discretion of the Board

Ocean Wilsons Holdings Limited implemented a cash
settled phantom option scheme for selected senior
management, approved by shareholders at the Special
General Meeting held on 19 Aprl 2007 The final tranche
of optiens 1ssued under the scheme vested in Apnl 2012
and the total options outstanding under the scheme
were exercised by partictpants during 2012 There 15 no
remaining hability under the plan and no accrual (2011
US$3 7m) has been included in the 2012 accounts for
benefits accruing under the plan

NCCGROUP (Mkt Cap £285 4m 4 0% of NAV Performance
-6 8%) the internationai, independent provider of Escrow
and Assurance announced a good set of interim results,
with cash conversion strong once agamn at 114% NCC has
recently acquired two US-based companies, Matasano
Secunty and Intreprdus, establishing the Group as a major
force in East US, with the largest testing team in the key
New York area The group has enjoyed significant success
in the US since 1t acquired California-based 1Sec Partners
in October 2010 and there are now more than 120 staff
in the US and the business there I1s growing strongly The
Group now has the largest and most highly respected team
of dedicated secunty consultants in the world and 1s very
well placed to capitalise on the increased focus on cyber-
secunty on both sides of the Atlantic which, combined
with the close to 90% recurring revenues and exceptional
margins In its software escrow business, makes NCC
group a valuable strategic asset The nise and seventy
of cyber-attacks 15 concerming and could lead to some
form of cyber-secunty legistation requiring companies to
reveal matenal secunty breaches, which in turn would
drive higher spending in cyber-secunty consulting and
solutions The project to develop the secure domain name

to make the internet a safer place is progressing well and
management has decided to accelerate 1ts development,
which will incur an additional £1 5 2 Om of investment
in the year, which will be expensed The group has just
signed a new three-year banking facility, with the £40m
multt currency revolving credit faciity {(+ £5m overdraft)
replacing the previous agreement of £35m + £2m that
was due to expire in July The expanded facility, along with
NCC’s high level of recurring revenues and consistently
good cash generation, should provide the group with
a greater degree of flexibility with which to continue to
grow through a combimation of organic and acquisitive
expansion

EXPERIAN {Mkt Cap £11,5151m 39% of NAV
Performance 19 4%) the global credit information and
marketing services group remamns a long-term growth
story, as It continues on a Jjourney of expansion Into new
geographic markets, notably the group’s high growth
Braziban subsidiary Serasa and verticals, with a culture
of innovation to develop new products and move In to
new customer segments Acquisitive growth funded by
free cash flow continues to play an important role, with
the deals tending to be bolt-on which accelerate orgamic
growth or allow the group to expand the reach of its core
competencies ofdata oranalytics Experianrecently bought
In a 29 9% stake in Serasa from its minenty shareholders
for a constderation of US$1 Shn, paving the way for the
return of surplus capitat to shareholders starting in FY14
Serasa 15 one of the largest credit bureau i the wortd
and 15 the market leader in Brazii, with approximately
60% market share Expenan's Q3 IMS included strong
arganic 11% growth from North Amenican Credit services,
a terntory which has traditionally been the powerhouse of
the group and still accounts for seme 55% of group EBIT
and the chief executive wrote “we are now in the fourth
year of our global growth programme and it 15 gaining
momentum We continue to see significant opportunities
and In order to maximise our growth potential we are
today launching a new efficiency programme to drive
operational improvements and to sustain premium
grawth into the future™, all of which should be seen as an
extension of the self-help programme Experan’s agenda
of expanding In early stage and new verticals, reatising the
potential of new products and extending geographic reach
gives confidence that the standing guidance of mid-to-
hugh single digit revenue growth, improvement in margin
and high conversion of profit to cash 1s achievable A story
of addressing a dynamic, rapidly widening market place in
which data and analytics confer comparative advantage
and mitigate risk
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WEIR GROUP (Mkt Cap f4,8092m 38% of NAV
Performance 309%) 1s a global engineenng solutions
provider to the mining, ol & gas and power markets This
focus, together with a growing emerging market presence,
continued commitment to operational excellence, strong
aftermarket revenues and value enhancing acquisitions
has resulted in strong operating margins Interestingly
General Electric has just announced the acqguisition of
Lufkin Industnes, an oilfield pump manufacturer For
a time last year Weir was the most shorted stock in the
FTSE 100, but the record full year figures and operating
margin proved them wrong, along with a strengthening
aftermarket, which now represents 55% of group revenues,
while Emerging Market revenues increased to 37% of
group revenues The full year dividend was increased by
15% and alongside substantially higher cash generation
In 2013, the group plans the eighth consecutive year of
double digit dividend growth and the 30th consecutive year
of dwidend growth The aftermarket strength (s something
the bears of the stock have failed to understand, because
as Werr's installed base of original equipment grows,
the amount of revenue It receives for servicing and new
parts rises With many of the mining majors delaying new
projects, the Weir debate 1s focussed on the deliverability
of the June 2012 target to double the EBIT number by
2016 The mainstay products are slurry pumps for mining
and pressure pumps for hydraulic fracturing of shale
gas and shale cil, both with high wear rates and in the
case of mining the beneficiary of higher mine production
levels &s ore grades decline Weir has agreed to acquire
Mathena Inc, a leading provider of pressure control rental
equipment and services for onshore o1l and gas drilling
applcations, supported through 12 service facilities
located In the key US unconventional a1l and gas basins,
increasing the aftermarket focus of Weir OIl & Gas Keith
Cochrane, Weir's CEQ, sees the UK's experience in the ol
and gas sector making it “the obvious choice as a hub for
Europe’s nascent shale gas industry”

DV4 (£1bn committed, Unquoted, 2 5% of NAV
Performance ¢ 4%) has now drawn down 64 7% of monies
committed and Hansa Trust has a £10m commitment to
this fund In addition there is significantly more capital
committed to existing assets in DV4, which will in¢rease
that committed percentage matenally The focus of
acquisitions for the DV4 portfolio in the recent past and
going forward has been towards Landon and the South
East, in the two principal markets where momentum
exists, namely prime offices and residential DV4 has
now acquired 22 investments and has released profits
from the sale of 40 Holborn Viaduct The Olympic Village

(50 50 joint venture with Qatari Diar) 15 likely to require
substantial equity at compietion and Minerva (50 50 joint
venture with AREA Property Partners) will require further
equity as well DV4’s subsidiary Alpha Plus Holdings
successfully 1ssued a 7 year 5 75% Sterling secured retail
bond with an aggregate nominal amount of £48 5m The
proceeds wilt be used by Alpha Plus to repay existing
shareholder loans owed by it to DV4 and willin turn be used
by DV4 to repay an existing £40m term loan and a2 working
capital facility from RBS, due for repayment in Apnl 2013
The assembled portfolio very much reflects the onginal
thinking behind the fund, namely 1t 1s opportumistic in
nature, has considerable potential for value enhancement
through asset management imiiatives and has a theme of
underlying quality

BG GROUP (Mkt Cap £38,414m 3 7% of NAV Performance
-21 0%) 2012 was BG's annus hombilis, with production
growth stalled for 2012 and 2013 amid production
problems, project delays, 33% capex inflation in Australia
and a change of CEQ BG Group's Q3 rasults were largely
in ine with expectations, but the production downgrades
for both 2012 and 2013 came as a surprise, although
the company Insists production guidance for 2014 and
beyond 1s unchanged The company attributed the slide in
the preduction outlook to a series of deferrals or delays
on projects in the North Sea, USA, Egypt and Brazit BG
still has the resource potential to deliver a significant uphft
i earnings in 2015 and beyond and raised its full year
dmwidend by 10% Recently BG announced the appointment
of Chns Finlayson as CEQ, effective 1 January He has
35 years' industry experience and prior to BG his career
was spent at Shell LNG markets could see a doubling in
demand by 2025 and with 40% of its value and nearly 30%
of its production LNG related, BG Is the outstanding play on
the positive trends with trading upside should the current
wave of projects face delay Last October BG announced
the sale of a stake in the Queensland Curtrs LNG project in
Australia for US$1 9bn to CNQOC which, along with other
disposals, has raised some US$7 ébn, helping to support
a heavy capital expenditure programme to bring on stream
projects 1n Brazil and Australia The annual strategy update
was delayed until 14 May and until this event there may be
speculation that the Group's previous growth projections
of 6 8% pa could be revised lower, while the Group may
need to make further disposals to unlock the potential
value in its Brazihian and Austrabian assets

HARGREAVES SERVICES (Mkt Cap £227 9m 3 2% of NAV
Performance 28 9%} I1s the UK's leading supplier of solid
fuels and bulk matenal logistics The company announced
record profits for the year ended 31 May 2012, which were
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overshadowed by on-gomg geological gas ingress problems
n the Maltby deep coal mine Hargreaves provided an
update on Maltby Colliery in November, stating the 7125
panel was not viable on health & safety, geological and
financial grounds, so the mine would be mothballed The
group expects that the net cash effect of the mothballing
process will be positive, with discussions regarding the
sale of plant and equipment progressing well Maltby 15
not a core asset i terms of growth strategy and the group
15 well placed to continue taking 1ts services-led offenng
tnto new geographies, leveraging its expenence in mining
services, steel and power generation Last December
Hargreaves announced that a serous overstatement of
stock values and credit notes had been identified within
the Group’s Belgian subsicdiary, with a potential balance
sheet wnte off of up to £18 8m A further announcement
confirmed that the proposed mothbatling of Maltby Colliery
will praceed and is planned to be completed by the end of
March 2013 The post-tax forecast loss from discontinued
operations 1s £58m, including a non cash balance sheet
write down of £45m relatig to goodwill, mineral nghts and
development assets The intenm results for the six months
ending November 2012 saw a 15% Increase in the intenm
dividend, with the group trading strongly through the first
three months of the second half and, excluding Maltby and
Belgium, full year results are expected to be in line with
management’s expectations Energy & Commodities has
continued to trade weli Tower Colliery 15 expected to be a
significant contnbuter to Group profits and management
Is targeting further opportunities to accelerate the
development of the surface miming operations Surface
mining In the UK 1s regarded as an attractive sector with
a more manageable nsk profile than deep mining New
projects can be planned and steps can be taken, such as
fixing coal and fuel prices, to reduce the nisk profile on
these projects In the trading actwities in the Energy &
Commodities Division the management continues to utilise
back to back deals that do not create exposure to changing
commodity prices Hargreaves 1s a diversified, strong
Group focused on a broad range of value added actvities
assocrated with the supply of solid fuel and the Board
remains confident about the prospects for the group

HERALD INVESTMENT TRUST {Mkt Cap £453 2m 3 1% of
NAV Performance 10 6%) was launched in 1994 to invest
in smaller quoted Technology, Media & Telecom stocks
The majonty of assets are invested in the UK market and
the portfolio 1s very diversified with some 240 holdings,
so individual stock nsk is relatively low, while there 1s
very little net geanng at the present time Little interest1s
betng shown by institutional nvestors in this area of the

market as reflected n very bitle IPO activity, leading to
low valuations, thereby leaving the door open to takeover
activity, particularly by US companies The Trust's total
return was 12 3% 1n 2012, with UK investrents accounting
for just over 70% of its portfolio

GREAT PORTLAND ESTATES (Mkt Cap £1,7055m 26%
of NAV Performance 40 4%) 1s a fully exposed Londen
offices and retail REIT, with an 80% weighting in the
West End and the balance in the City and Southwark The
Group’s average office rent remains low at £38 per sq ft
and “conditions in London’s commercial property markets
remain supportive, the demand for well laid out retail and
office space in goed locations Is attracting healthy levels
of tenant demand, whilst the avatlability of such space,
particularly 1n the core of the West End, 1s 1n short supply
As a result, we expect rental values across our portfolio to
continue their upward trend ” There are two commercial
property markets in the UK, Central London and the rest
of the country The company's pre-letting successes have
de-nsked its committed development pipeline, as well
as allowing 1t to switch on further schemes There are
16 uncommitted schemes totaling 2 6m sq ft, including
two “jewels”, namely the two major land holdings and
Crossrail beneficianes at Hanover Square and Rathbone
Place, both London W1 Great Portland Estates announced
good interims and a £140m placing last November to
take advantage of market opportumties, since when the
company has made its second acquisition, meaning 69%
of the proceeds are now deployed Since raising £166m in
the May 2009 nghts 1ssue the company has made £644m
of acquisitions, delivering an ungeared IRR of about
18% pa “Qur portfolio, 100% in central London, 15 nch
with asset management and development opportunity
and 1s well positioned for further growth” Meanwhile,
the amount of safe haven capial flowing into the central
London property market shows no signs of diminishing

GALLIFORD TRY (Mkt Cap £7515m 2 6% of NAV
Performance 55 1%j) set out a strategy in September 2009
to transform its house building business by carrying out
a nights 1ssue to raise £125 6m, setting the ambitious
objective of doubling the size of the house building division
by the end of the third year and targeting a significant
increase In profits and return on capitat The plan was to
create a business that could deliver around 3,000 units a
year with a deliberate focus on the South of England where
the market 15 more robust These objectives have been
exceeded and in addition, the group has mamntained ahigh
quality and profitabte construction order book The current
strategy I1s to enhance the quality of earnings and improve
cash flow, enabling the group to pursue a progressive and
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sustamable dividend distnibution policy A strong balance
sheet and a disciplined growth strategy with a clear focus
on tmproving margins by improving building practices
and benefitting from a positive undertow in the work out
of legacy land Galliford Try raised its mterim dividend
by 33% and in a stable market 15 seeing continued
momentum in house building and will continue to focus
on margin enhancement The total land bank 1s currently
10,700 plots, 84% of which had been acquired under
current market conditions 100% of land 1s secured for the
financial year to 30 June 2014 and 65% 1s secured for 2015,
supporting the strategy of delivering incremental operating
margin growth The strategic land totals 1,523 acres, from
which 7,000 plots are expected to be generated Selling
prices are slightly above expectations as the spring selling
season gets in to gear The reinvigorated housing market
could pick up further now that the Government’s existing
funding for the Lending Scheme, which has slashed
mortgage Interest rates along with a record low base rate,
has been bolstered by the introduction of the Help to
Buy mortgage guarantee policy in the latest budget, with
commentators suggesting the Chancellor 1s mistaking a
supply-side problem for a demand side problem, making 1t
likely that an increase in demand will drive up prices, make
it easy to build new hames and house prices might fall The
construction business 1s delivenng a robust performance
against the backdrop of a difficult market The group 1s
well positioned to deliver further profitable growth in 2013
and beyond

HANSTEEN HOLDINGS (Mkt Cap £544 6m 2 5% of NAY
Performance 24 6%) has a heavy portfolio weighting n
Germany (55%) and a strategy of buying high yielding
industnal properties at less than replacement cost, with
opportunities to add value and manage them intensively
via locally based management teams for income and
capital growth The key I1s purchase prce, financing
structure and management approach "The likelihood 15
that the next five or six years will be a penod for acquinng
and intensively managing Whilst there will be selective
sales there are unlikely to be large-scale realisations
Most Likely, the bulk of the returns to our shareholders
will be from growing income and dividends Later n the
cycle capital returns will become more significant ” The
company announced & reassuring set of final figures,
proving its business model Since 2005 the company has
paid a covered dvidend which has grown by 50% over the
period and the Board intends to maintain its prudently
progressive dividend policy for the foreseeable future The
decision to bwild Hansteen's direct marketing and asset
management teams across the UK, Benelux and Germany

1s now providing the Group with the platform to better
exploit the existing portfolio and affords the opportunity
to efficiently absorb any new acquisitions There 15 shill
nearly 18% of the portfolio vacant and avaitable to improve
earnings and NAV Germany continues to be the strongest
market but the UK and even the Benelux are showing
Increasing enquiries

ANDOR TECHNOLOGY (Mkt Cap £1193m 25% of
NAY Performance -256%) 15 a global leader in the
development and manufacture of high performance
scentific digital cameras for academic, tndustrial and
government applications The company Is centinuing to
see strong growth In Asia Pacific, offset by weaker sales
in Europe and the US Trading last year was affected by
an earlier absence of orders from two of the company’s
US customers, one of which has now returned to more
normal ordertng patterns, but still leaving a gap 1n 2012
order flow Andor's revenues and profits for the full year
were still modestly ahead of the prior year, while earnings
rose 14% with the tax charge reducing to 15% due to R&D
tax credits and one off items Net cash ended the year at
£17 1m 2013 15 expected to see a slower sales growth
rate than i1s normal because of the potential impact of US
Federal Government spending cuts on research budgets
and the US budget sequestration Innovation and new
product delivery 1s key to Andor’s continued growth and
the company has maintained 1ts commitment to research
and development and has a clear strategy for growth inthe
mid-range camera market, where the new mid-range Zyla
camera has been well received Andor 15 now the market
leader in a number of key segments The company 1s well
placed to broaden its activities further by acquisition,
targeting adjacent markets such as machine wision and
secunty The company has been building up sizeable
cash reserves over the last few years and the board now
considers it appropnate to pay a matden dividend of 2p
and intends to adopt a pregressive dividend policy which
reflects the long-term earnings and cash flow potential of
the company The latest trading update for the six months
to 31 March 2013 anticipated cash balances at the penod
end of Iin excess of £20m and a strengthened order book,
driven by a strong performance in the OEM segment,
although the drawdown agamst the OEM order book has
been less than expected

BHP BILLITON {Mkt Cap £40,4309m 25% of NAV
Performance 2 3%) 1s the largest mining company mn
the world with tier 1, high volume, low production cost,
long life and expandable upstream assets, diversified by
commodity, geography and market The company expects
industrialisation and urbanisation of China and other
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emerging economies to continue to support strong demand
for many commodities in the long-term, but takes the view
that the commodity supercycle is decelerating in the short
term, rather than coming to an end BHP Billiton s more
of a resources company than a miner, with the Petroleum
Division contributing 23% of EBIT, which it is prepared
to see nsing to 40% of EBIT (f that 1s how opportunities
and projects develop and, in due course exposure to
phosphates, in one sense a proxy for food production Ol
15 more defensive than metals and phosphates are Likely to
be sotoo Nowthat Chinese investment growth 15 slowing,
BHP 1s scaling back its previously announced capex plans
BHP announced a sobd set of intenm results and the
appoeintment of Andrew Mackenzie, a Scot, as CEQ, who
15 “committed to drive an agenda of productivity” as the
sector 1s switchung its focus from growth to a battle to
protect profit margins by cutting costs Capital discipline 1s
the new order, which will result in improving management
of long term capex for realistic near term cash returns
For FT13, 20 major projects are currently n execution
with a budget of U$%$22 8bn and the company has stated
that no major project approvals are expected In the next
12 months BHP has provided an update for Clympic Dam
{a mme with a Ife of at least 100 years }, delaying the
project to investigate an alternative, less capital intensive
design The new prudence, “We are absclutely determined
to bend the cost trend,” 1s going down well with investors,
who see the move as protecting cash for dvidends or
share buy backs and for new investment opportunities in
the current downturn Meanwhile improving Chinese lead
indicators and a supportive iron ore price have instilled a
sense that China's demand impactin H1 13 might be more
matenal than previously expected

UNITED BUSINESS MEDIA (Mkt Cap £1,7293m 24%
of NAV Performance 17 7%) focuses on two pnnopal
activities  worldwide information distnbution, targeting
and monitoring and the development and monetisation
of B to B communities and markets, with 6,000 staff in
more than 30 countnes UBM’s business mix has been
maving towards more attractive dvisions and geographies,
namely Events and US/emerging markets including China,
through a combination of organic growth and acquisitions
This lengthy process of transfermation from media
conglomerate to focused Events business 1s an attractive
transformation given the better visibility and structural
growth opportunities Post the sale of its Data Services
business for a £160m headline pnce, Events, the valuable
part of UBM and a secular growth story, now represents
75% of group proforma EBITA, leaving the shares as the
only effective larger cap play on Events, with a focus on

large trade shows The largest 20 shows account for just
under half of annual revenues and altogether 100 annual
events generated revenues of more than US$1 Om each,
accounting for 85% of annual revenues, while Emerging
markets account for 43% of annual Event revenues This
should be the catalyst for a re-rating of the shares, while also
allowing the re focused company to choose from returning
cash, reducing debt and/or making more earnings accretive
Events acquisibons UBM's Events business comes out very
well against its peers, both on an organic revenue growth
basis and also on margins and events/exhibitions are often
the only occasion when industry players can get together
Management can now focus on further developing UBM
as a fast-growing and increasingly profitable Events led
marketing services & communications business operating
1n growing economies and sectors

CENTRICA (Mkt Cap £19,0528m 24% of NAvV
Performance 22 0%) 1s the UK’s largest energy supplier
with 41% of the gas market, 25% of the electncity market
and 7% of the UK power generation market Some 70%
of Centnca’s operating profit arises from two divisions,
Centrica Energy, the upstream business and Centrica
Residential, the downstream business, with a continuing
trend towards vertical integration between the two
Centrica’s strategy of increased vertical integration and
improving operational efficiency has enabled it to continue
to grow, despite the challenging economic environment
and volatile commodity prices Strong cash generation
and a good balance sheet underpin significant spend on
organic capex and acquisitions as well as future dividend
growth British Gas Services Is targeting double-digit profit
growth through operational efficiencies Centrica will exit
its new nuclear JV with EDF and return surplus capttal of
£500m to shareholders via a share buyback, showing
that discipbne around capital deployment rematns intact
Final results came with a 6% increase in the dividend and
further progress in building a more sustainable, vertically
integrated, cost effective and customer focused business,
with meaningful geographic diversity and with North
Amernica a more matenal part of the Group, where 1t already
has 3 5m residential customers, mainly 1n Texas and the
US North East, as well as 0 4m B2B business services
accounts A recent landmark 20 year penod liquefied
natural gas (LNG) supply deal with North Amenican based
Chemiere Energy will help diversify Centrica’s energy mix
and marks the first deal of its kind for a UK supplier locking
to move into cheap US shale gas

HSBC HOLDINGS (Mkt Cap £130,414 8m 2 4% of NAV
Performance 32 3%) has sigmificant exposure to emerging
markets, particularly Asia (some 75% of the bank's total
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profits) and 1s entirely retail funded, with a loan to deposit
ratio of 75%, making it a net lender into wholesale markets
HSBC has reiterated that it is confident it will achieve cost
savings at the top end of its US$2 5-3 5bn target range
by the end of 2013, demonstrating that costs are under
control and at the same time Stuart Gulliver thinks the
bank can hit its target ROE range of 12-15% HSBC’s final
2012 results were helped by a dropin the bad debt charge,
partcularly in the US umit and strong revenue growth in
the Global Banking and Markets business and record
reported PBT in Commercial Banking HSBC 1s well into
Its three year restructuring plan to simplify the business,
having announced 26 transacttons to dispose of or close
businesses tn 2012, making a total of 47 since the start of
2011 The bank alse generated sustainable cost savings of
US$2bn in 2012, taking annualised savings to US$3 6bn
It announced a 29% increase i the final dividend and
the Board intends to increase the first three quarterly
dividends in 2013 by 11%

GLAXOSMITHKLINE (Mkt Cap £75,531 7m 2 3% of NAV
Performance 16 3%) has benefitted from its “defensive”
attractions of cash generation and a decent vield A
compelling long term buy amdst a backdrop of zero
interest rates and negative real yields Meanwhile the
proportion of world GDP spent on healthcare 1s expected
to nse as technology advances in pharmaceuticals and
medical equipment and devices continue to improve health
and life expectancy This might suggest GlaxoSmithkline 15
ke a supercharged inflation-linked bond, offering the win/
win of superior growth and a higher starting yield While it
I1s the first large-cap pharma to exit the patent cbff and has
minimal hard patent risk until 2015/16, 1t does face nsk
with its top selling drug, Advair, which accounts for about
30% of EBIT The company Is struggling to return to sales
and margin growth mode promised by CEO Andrew Witty,
increasing the pressure on the company to execute on its
pipeline, where regulatory and execution hurdles are high
The company has cleaned up the majonty of its liabilities
and management has been disciplined in its M3A efforts
and has had the confidence to invest in its pipeling, at a
time when the market was expecting a focus on margins
and expectations are very low when it comes to posstble
blockbusters Darapladib and MAGE-A3 are of greatest
Interest, each one capable of being transformatignal to
earnings initsown night Darapladipis attempting to become
a significant distuptive technology to the multi-bilhon dollar
statin market GSK has been testing “cancer therapeutic
vaccine” MAGE A3 in trials for metastatic melanema and
non small cell lung cancer Given GSK's vaccine expertise
the company has as good a chance as any of making the

breakthrough So, the Group remains highly cash generative
and there appears to be a good pipeline of new products,
with the potential to launch eight major new drugs and
vaccines in the next two years The company reported better
than expected Q4 results and a FY2013 share buy-back in
the region of £1-2bn, as well as more restructunng which
should yield benefits of some £1bn pa by 2016, at a cost of
£15bn The company has been through the majonty of its
patent expiries, big liability settlements and enjoys a strong
balance sheet with hitle M&A nsk as well as tail winds from
weakening Sterling

KOFAX (Mkt Cap £2816m 22% of NAV Performance
2 7%) strategy has evolved into a single corporate vision
statement, namely, to be the leading provider of capture
enabled business process management and analytics
solutions These solutions provide a rapid return on
investment tothousands of customers inbanking, insurance,
government, business process outsourcing and other
markets Kofax benefits from a customer base compnsing
over 20,000 named end user accounts and delivers these
solutions directly through 1ts own sales orgamsations and
a global network of more than 800 authonsed partners
throughout the Amencas, EMEA and Asia Pacfic CEOQ
Reynolds Bish, former CEO of Captiva, which was acquired
by EMC, has assembled a new management team, following
the disposal of the nan core hardware distnbution business
and built a direct sales strategy in order to transition the
business model 1o that of an enterprise software vendor,
moving Kofax away from the traditional batch capture
market, where 1t 1s market leader, towards the “smart
process applications” market, targeting the “First Mile” of
customer-generated content as it travels through enterpnse
processes Including potential earn-outs, Kofax, which is
highly cash generative, has spent US$71m on acquisitions
between 2011 and 2013 to fill technology and product gaps,
in addition to a programme of intensive grganic R&D, which
together with a more coherent sales orgamisation should
contribute to a resumption of high margin licence revenue
growth n the second half of this year Software licence
revenug declined n the six months ended December,
principally due to a large sale in EMEA slipping, which was
subsequently announced in March as a US$4 8m contract
with a national government agency in Western Europe,
problems with the sales organisation In the Amencas,
which have now been fixed and a decline in software licence
sales 1n the legacy capture products More encouragingly
the new mobile capture product revenue grew faster than
expected and product revenues from the Singulanty and
Atalasoft acquisttions grew more than 100% Half year end
cash increased to US$87 Om (US%$62 3m) and management
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believe they “are now at a turning point and should begin
to once again report software bcence and total revenue
growth”

CAPE (Mkt Cap £3780m 2 1% of NAV Performance
-20 2%) 15 an international provider of essential, non
mechanical support services to the energy and mineral
resources sectors Cape 15 fundamentally well placed
to benefit from the rise in global energy demand over
the next few years, but poor execution threw a spanner
in the works In March 2012 Cape announced that work
releases on an Algeran contract had been slower than
expected, with revenues in 2011 less than one-third of
planned levels and CEQG Martin May left the company,
being replaced on an acting basis by Brendan Connolly A
further project review was held in rmd April, dunng which
no matenal concerns were highlighted by the project team
and a trading statement on 1 May confirmed “that overall
trading has been in line with the board’s expectations
The bombshell came on 25 May when Cape announced
its intention to recogmise a one-off charge of £14m In
respect of current and estimated future losses on the
contract, followed by the announcement on 30 May of
the appointment of Joe Oatley, former CEQ of Hamworthy,
as CEQ, who had run Strachan & Henshaw, a contracting
business within Weir In August Cape announced its
third profit warming, saying full year results for 2012 and
2013 would be matenally lower than expected, this time
caused by a slowdown of onshore work in Austrahba At
the end of August management showed their confidence
in the outlook for the business by mamtaning the interim
dividend In NovemberCape flagged that fullyear operating
profit would be significantly below previous expectations
as trading conditions onshore Australia had detenorated
further, with Cape unable to replenish its project pipeline
as awards slowed, while the high-margin Pluto LNG
contract was drawing to a close and the company would
take a charge agamst the carrying value of the Australian
assets in the full year results The trading performance
of the Group's businesses in the UK, CIS/Mediterranean
& North Africa and Gulf/Middle East regions and Asia
was In line with expectations and “the Group's financial
position remamns robust” With new management in place
(Joe Oatley, CEQ, ex-Hamwaorthy, Michael Speakman, CFO,
ex-Expro) the company will be able to take advantage
of excellent growth opportumties In global markets,
particularly in the Far East, where both Offshore and
LNG markets are growing rapidly as Cape faces limited
competition and has a strong safety track record, which
continues to distinguish it amongst peers, while the
consistent performance of the UK business which benefits

from a largely defensive maintenance business has been
overshadowed by difficulties in other geographies The
final dwidend for the year ending 31 December 2012 was
held, with the UK business achieving a record adjusted
operating profit of £30 6m, offset by poor performances
on the Arzew Project and in the Onshore Austraban
business, which has been restructured A balance sheet
review saw an exceptional and other iems charge of
£15%9 am primanly relating to Onshore Australia and a
further £39 2m post-tax charge i respect of discontinued
operations, so the group started 2013 with a clean set of
accounts and balance sheet gearing of 36 6% A focus on
operationat performance should deliver much improved
margins in 2013 and with a range of growth epportunities
for 2014 and beyond Cape 15 well positioned to deliver
long-term earnings growth and the new management team
looks forward to the future with confidence

BP (Mkt Cap 88,174 6m 18% of NAV Performance
4 5%) share price was about 630p before the Deepwater
Horizon tragedy in the Gulf of Mexico some two years
ago, a disaster that at one point threatened BP’s very
survival BP agreed to sell its TNK BP stake to Rosneft for
US$26 3bn, eventually leaving 1t with a 19 75% stake in
Rosneft, which in turn becomes the world’s largest listed
energy company Including the sale of ts half of TNK-BP
1o Rosneft, the total sales proceeds amount to US365bn
BP’s Q3 results were well received while the company says
It I1s on track to deliver sts 10 pomt plan for 2014, which
includes plans to grow free cash flow, while focusing and
increasing nvestment 0 its upstream activities, while
reducing downstream operations Since 2010, BP has
accessed about 400,000 sq km of new acreage, more than
double the area secured in the previous nine years, as well
as cutting the number of upstream installations it operates
by 50% and the number of operated wells by about a third,
to reduce complexity and nsk BP has not yet been able
to draw a line under the Gulf disaster In December a US
court approved a US$7 8bn settlement between the group
and private sector plaintiffs affected by the spill and last
November BP agreed to 2 US$4 5bn settlement to resolve
cnminal charges relating to the disaster However, 1t still
faces claims for cvil penalties and damages from federal,
state and local authonties and a line will only be drawn
under Deepwater Horizon when the size of the damages
has been clanfied BP’s final results show that 1t has
become more focused on oil rather than gas following the
extensive divestment program and its portfolic 1s more
concentrated on conventional rather than unconventicnal
energy
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WOLSELEY (Mkt Cap £8,9682m 17% of NAV
Performance 36 2%) 1s the world's largest specialist
trade distnbutor of plumbing and heating products to
professional contractors and a leading suppher of bullding
matenals in North America, the UK and Continental
Europe After being hit hard by the recession in 2009,
the group has returned to good health under a new
management team which has completed disposals and 2
restructuring of the business Over half of Wolseley’s sales
are expected to come from the US in 2013 and it has been
and 15 expected to continue to be the engine of growth
for the group Although markets remain very competitive,
Wolseley continues with its policy of self-help, being very
tightly run and making progress largely driven by market
share gains, with an underlying trading margin of over 5%
with scope for further improvement, while continuing to
be highly cash generative The restoration to health was
confirmed with the full year results to July 2012 when the
Group paid a final dividend of £115m on 30 November and
a £350m special dividend on 31 December, a measure of
the speed with which the Group has recovered from the
dark days of 2008 2009 when shareholders supported a
£1bn rescue nghts 1ssue, as debt was running at £3bn
That nghts issue cash and another £2bn In operating
cashflows has wiped out the debt Ferguson, the US
subsidiary, has outperformed its market strongly as its
distnbution centre model 1s umque in the industry and
has given it economies of scale (being twice the size of its
next biggest competitor) and the ability to offer a range of
50,000 stock keeping units, compared to around 6,000 at
single branch competitors leaving it in a strong position to
benefit from the recent strengthening in new US housing
starts There 15 no sector of Amenca's economy that 15
more cyclical than housing and some commentators think
that the latest upturn could turn in to a boom by 2015,
driven by a combination of improving house prices, nising
rates of household formation and population growth, a
lower inventory of homes for sale and last but by no means
least iImproving access tc mortgage credit Detailed plans
are being worked up to simplify and refocus the French
business, including a proposed disposat or closure of up
to 40% of its network to create a strong regional player
in the North Sterling weakness 1s helpful for Wolseley's
reported profits as 87% of group sales are translated from
foreign currencies into Sterling

ENl S.PA. (Mkt Cap €63,7073m 17% of NAV
Performance 7 9%) 15 selltng 30% of 1ts 52 5% holding
in ltaban gas distnbutor Snam to Itallan State holding
company CDP as the first step in a complete disposal
This will see a large reduction in ENI's balance sheet

gearing and a sharp increase tn E&P exposure As a result
of s improved gearnng ENI will authense the restart of a
share buyback programme, with the ltalian government
maintaining its holding in ENI at 30% ENI's 43%-owned
subsidiary Saipem, which represents ENI's Engineertng
and Construction businessissued a profit warning, guiding
2013 EBIT to be 50% lower than its 2012 guidance, which
has seen a reduction in ENI's earmings expectations of
between 1 4% pa over the next three years ENI's Q4
results logked quite strong, with production volumes up
4% y/y 1n the quarter and 7% for the full year largely as
a result of the recovery of Libyan output The target 1s to
grow volumes by more than 3% pa over 2011-15, after
adjusting for the Libyan outage, followed by growth of
3% pa from 2015 to 2021

ROYAL DUTCH SHELU's (Mkt Cap £56,806 7m 1 2% of
NAV Performance 4 4%) figures have continued to be
volatile over recent quarters, with a significant miss in
the second gquarter due to temporary factors However,
Q3 earnings were ahead of market expectations Its key
targets are to improve cash flow by 50% to US$200bn over
the 2012-15 penod and by 2017 18 ol & gas production
1s expected to be 4 million barrels ol equivalent
Gearnng 15 low and Shell’s cash flow projections give
it the opportunity to fund its heavy capital investment
programme and at the same time grow the dividend A Q4
earnings disappointment was offset by the guidance for a
dividend increase of 5% and the re-emphasis of the 2012-
15 cash flow, capex and volume targets which underline
the strength of prospective free cash flow

GOALS SOCCER CENTRES (Mkt Cap £704m 1 1% of
NAV Performance 29 9%) is the leading player in the fast-
growing 5-a side soccer market, operating 43 centres in
the UK, one In Los Angeles and has established a pipeline
in excess of 40 sites The latest intenm figures were
overshadowed by the recent failed 144p per share bid
from Ontano Teachers' Pension Scheme, blocked by just
over 25% of sharehotders on the grounds it undervalued
the business The barriers to entry are high in this market
and the cost of the centres 1s mostly in the bwild and
once the capital 15 sunk the on-going runming costs are
relatively margimal A focus on strong cash generation
to continue reducing debt levels, while enhancing return
on capital from immature sites cpened since 2008, Is the
main story going forwards Meanwhile, a new innovative
modular build concept has been successfully developed
at Chester on time and con budget, reducing capital
expenditure to £1 5m per centre from £2 3m and reducing
the build time to 14 weeks from 22 weeks, sigmificantly
improving return on capital The current year appears to
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have started reasonably well with like for like sales up
3% One extra game per day in each of the 43 branches
equates to an additional £0 8m of EBITDA, a reflection of
the high operational gearing

BROOKS MACDONALD GROUP (Mkt Cap £187 8m 1 1% of
NAV Performance 12 4%} 15 an AIM histed integrated wealth
management group with 361 staff members, £4 62bn of
funds under management, operating out of ten offices The
group offers a centralised investment management service
covering discretionary private client asset management,
financial adwisory and employee benefits consultancy,
fund management, specialist estate management, the
provision of investment administration and the provision of
offshore investment management, retirement solutions and
administration The group was established in 1991, floated
in 2005, has never borrowed meney, has always been very
prudently run, 1s strongly cash generative in nature, has
always operated with a clean 1% flat management fee with
no performance fees and the management are the largest
sharehelder group, controlling well over a third of the group
Spearpoint, a Jersey based asset manager, was acquired
last November, expanding Brooks Macdonald's geographic
footprint into the Channel Islands, adding scale with
discretionary funds under management of £686m including
Funds totaling £85m, together with adwisory assets of

QUTLCOK

Over the medium term 1t 15 economic growth and nsing
corporate profitability that drives stock prices, although
central bank menetary policy 1s providing good support
as the money printed flows in to high-end real assets
like the stock market, pnme real estate, art, etc as the
banks remain a blockage In the monetary transmission
mechanism, preventing the money from flowing to the
vibrant private smalt business sector where capital
rationing continues, creating a credit shortage where
it 1s most needed Encouragingly US economic figures
have continually surprised on the upside since last
autumn A showdown over the fiscal cliff at year-end was
avoided with a delay of the debt ceilling pushed out to
mid late summer The sequester, or automatic spending
cuts, amounting to some 0 5% of GDP was imposed but
consumer spending has held up well in the face of tax
increases The housing sector 15 ganing considerable
momentum and could bave a long way to run, while
household balance sheets have benefitted from nsing
home prices and a buoyant stock market and bank credit
15 once again powenng the recovery as US banks are
lending once more The US i1s becoming more competitive

£357m and adding offshore and ternatienal capabthity
together with the acquisition of a strong investment
management and pensionsteam The integrationofthe team
in to Brooks Macdonald has gone well and 15 expected to
begin to contnibute to group growth in the second half of the
calendar year The attractions of the deal are the expansion
of capability and distribution opportunities as opposed to
cost savings A good organic growth opportunity remains
for Brooks Macdonald, predicated on continued expected
strong growth in SIPP adoption, favourable UK demographic
trends, effshore and international oppertunities and finally
greater capacty ubibsation, resulting wn an improving
operating margin Operating margins on a net revenue basts
are currently running at about 19% and something nearer
30%, might be achievable in the longer term as the business
matures Although the trend for IFA outsourcing Is likely to
slow down post RDR, as the benefit from first time adoption
of outsourcing arrangements diminishes, management
continue to re-affirm that their 20% pa organic growth
target remains valid for FY13 and FY14 in spite of RDR, with
growth in SIPPs in particular providing a substantial growth
opportunity

when looking at productivity-adjusted labour costs, with
greater US capex resulting from less off-shoring now
that the Pacific nm has become less competitive Factory
orders advanced 3% in February, the biggest increase in
five months, on the back of higher demand For autos and
commercial aircraft, as well as increased orders for metals
and electrical equipment Developments in the shale oil &
gas are a game changer when It comes to energy costs
There are hopes that the US economy, the largest in the
world, 1s gaming enough momentum to become self-
sustaining and more impervious to external shocks The
Fed contsinues to be more focused on the growth outlook
than the threat of future inflation and more worrned about
the potential downside nsks to a sustanable economic
recovery than upside potential About 236,000 new jobs
were created in February and the unemployment rate fell
to7 7% from 7 9% and the Fed is committed to a sustained
improvement 1n labour market conditions while the
unemployment rate remains more than a full percentage
point above the 6 5% level at which the Fed has indicated
it might contemplate raising rates, suggesting markets
are hkely to continue to remain buoyed by exceptionally
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accommodative monetary conditions for some time to
come, even when unconventional stimulus ends Investors
are less wornied about China's slowing, with economic
growth accelerating for the first time in two years at the
end of 2012 in Japan, Prime Minister Abe has pledged
to revitalise the economy through fiscal and monetary
means, following the US example of no holds barred
monetary radicalism in his determination to end deflation
and spur economic growth The Bank of Japan will aim to
double the monetary base over two years, through the
aggressive purchase of long term bonds to achieve a 2%
inflation goal No major economy has greater sensitivity
to currency moves than |apan, so a weaker Yen will help
to boost the earnings of exporters The btgger question 1s
whether Japan’s vested interests will prevent the economy
from much needed structural reform, as has been the case
foralmost three decades The economy needs deregulating
and productivity needs to be much higher and there must
be a willimgness to accept the pain of reform, as monetary
policy only buys time, but1s not the panacea No economic
policy exists to offset the adverse impact of a rapidly
ageing population and the impact of a shnnking working
age population on domestic demand and no policy exists
to reduce the burden of financing a run-away fiscal defiait,
or service a completely unsustamable mountain of public
sector debt, other than one last desperate attempt to
inflate it away Europe has contnibuted very little to global
economic growth over the past ten years and nvestor
sentiment 1s discounting no hope of a decent recovery
in the foreseeable future Hawving said that Europe didn’t
have a meltdown in 2012 and the Euro survived, so it may
be premature to take the line of a leading economist, that
“in short, Europe could become as irrelevant to markets
and the world economy In the next decade as Japan has
been in the past 20 years” Time will tell

in the meantime ammal spints are stirnng In corporate
hoardrooms The US corporate sector 1s back in hirng
mode, as payroll employment growth has averaged over
200,000 per month over the past four months and the
1SM has firmed There has been a revival in big deals with
Liberty Global's US$23 3bn purchase of Virgin Media,
Comcast’s US$18 1bn NBC Universal buyout and the Dell
and Heinz go-private deals for US$24 4bn and US$28bn
respectively, while the IPO markets have re-opened on
hoth sides of the Atlantic Sterling’s sharp fall since the
beginming of the year reflects concerns about inflation as
the Bank of England remains the most dovish of all major
central banks, as 1t 1s now aiming at meeting its inflation
target of 2% n three, rather than two years, while also
reflecting the view that the UK's economic cutlook 1s nearly

as had as the Eurozone's US GDP 1s already 2 4% above
previcus peak, while UK GDP1s 3 3% below previous peak
and UK household leverage 1s much higher than that of
the US Sterling could remain weak which 1s positive for
UK equities in local currency terms, given that about 70%
of FTSE 100 revenues ¢ome from overseas and many
dividends are denominated win US Dollars, so dividend
growth could be double digit this year rather than earlier
estimates of about an 8% Increase In addition, a nse In
Inflation expectations 15 good for equities, which are an
Inflation hedge The rotation or migratton into assets that
have higher economic nsk exposure has been very slow
dunng this investment cycle, as investor confidence has
been very slow to revive against the headwinds of banking
crises, sovereign debt ¢nses and uncertainty caused by
a sluggish economic recovery in the developed world,
despite the use of unorthodox monetary policies The
global hunt for yield continues against a background of
record low interest rates around the world, with investors
increasingly looking to equity markets in their search
for income Many mshitutions, ke pension funds, have
allocations to eguities that are well below the average
of the last fifty years and nobedy seems to be in a hurry
to increase them Investors are creeping out on the risk
spectrum in a very cautious way, with much of the flow
imto equities coming from cash and going in to defensive
sectors like healthcare and consumer staples, while a bond
selloff has yet to matenalise A great rotation? Who knows
However, when allocations to equities are on the low side
and mmvestor attitudes are generally one of disinterest
or fear as 1s now the case, there Is less lkelthood that
being invested 1s an error After all, cash and the majonty
of bonds are pretty well guaranteed to be loss-making
investments in real terms, unless the world enters a penod
of general deflation, which 15 exactly what central banks
are determined to avoid “at all costs”

Hansa Capital Partners LLP
Investment Manager
April 2013
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PORTFOLIO INFORMATION

Fairvalue Percentage of

Investment £000 Net Assets
Ccean Wilsons Holdings Limited 97,269 37 4
NCC Group Plc 10,312 40
Expenian Group Limited 10,260 3¢9
Weir Group Plc %,940 38
BG Group Plc 9,506 37
Hargreaves Services Plc 8,290 32
Herald Investment Trust Plc 8,037 31
Great Portland Estates Plc 6,843 26
Gatliford Try Plc 6,725 26
Hansteen Holdings Plc 6,510 25
Top 10 Investments 173,692 66 8
Andor Technology Plc 6,454 25
DVa Lid # 6,432 25
BHP Billiton Plc 6,415 25
United Business Media Plc 6,341 24
Centnca Plc 6,320 24
HSBC Heldings Plc 6,220 24
GlaxoSmithkline Plc 6,154 23
Kofax Plc 5,657 22
Cape Industrnes Plc 5.464 21
BP Plc 4,599 18
Top 20 Investments 233,748 899
Wolseley Plc 4,503 17
EniSPA 4,434 17
Royal Dutch Shell Plc 3,139 12
Goals Soccer Centres Ple 2,877 11
Brooks MacDonald Group 2,824 11
Lloyds Banking Group Ple 2,272 09
Qmnetig Group Plc 2,073 08
Cairn Energy Plc 1,453 06
Petroceltic International Plc 1,205 05
All Leisure Group Plc 864 03
Top 30 Investments 259,392 998
Other Investments (24) 3,011 12
Total Investments 262,403 1010
Net Current Liabilities (2,495) (10)
Net Assets 259,908 100 00
Listed 208,405 79 4
AlM and OFEX 47,106 180
Unquoted 6,892 26
262,503 1000

# Unguoted
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

The Board has prepared this report in relation to all Directors who have served during the year and in accordance with

the requirements of s 420-422 of the Companies Act 2006
put to the shareholders at the forthcoming AGM

An ordinary resolutton for the approval of this report will be

The law requires your Company's Auditor to audit certain of the disclosures provided The disclosures on the Directors’
emoluments for the year have been audited and the Auditor’'s opinion 1s included in its report on page 41

[ REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

| DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company has five non-executive Directors The
Board as a whole fulfills the function of a remuneration
committee  The Board has appointed the Company
Secretary to prowide relevant information when the
Directors consider the tevel of Directors’ fees

The Board regularly carnes out a review of the level of
Directors' fees

[ POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ FEES

The Board's policy 15 that the remuneration of
non-executive Directors should not include a performance
related element and that Directors do not receve bonuses,
share options, pensiens or long-term incentive schemes,
however 1t should reflect the expenence of the Board as
a whaole, be appropniate for the work carried out and the
responsibtities undertaken Itis intended that this policy
will continue

The fees for the non-executive Directors are within the
limits of £150,000 In total, set out in the Company’s
Articles of Association

| DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

It 15 the Board's policy that all the Directors have a service
contract which are currently being reviewed in light of the
implementation of the AIFMD None of the service contracts
15 for a fixed term The terms of appontment provide that
a Director shall retire and be subject to re-election at the
first AGM after appointment The Board has decided that
each Director will retire annually at the AGM and seek
re-election as appropriate The terms also provide that
either party may give three months’ notice and In certain
circumstances a Director may be removed without notice
and that compensation will not be due on leaving office
There are no agreements between the Company and 1ts
Directors concerning compensation for loss of office

The Directors meet as a Board on a quarterly basis and at other times as necessary and the table below sets out the
number of meetings and the attendance at them by each Director

Number of meetings held
Number of meetings attended
Mr Hammond-Chambers

Lord Borwick

Mr Davie

Lord Oxford

Mr Salomon

Professor Wood

Audit

Strategic Board Committee
1 5 2

1 5 2

- 3 1

1 1 -

1 1 -

1 5 2

1 5 2
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LYOUR COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE

The graph below shows the five year cumulative total return to shareholders against the FTSE All-Share Index total return
and the Company’s performance benchmark

|_ BENCHMARK COMPARISON
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|_DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (AUDITED)

The Directors who served in the year received the following emoluments in the form of fees

2013 2012

£000 £000

Mr Hammoend-Chambers (Chairman of the Board)* 30 30

Lord Borwick** 7 20
Mr Davig*** 5

Lord Oxforg*** 5 -

Mr Salomon**** 18 18

Professor Wood 20 20

B85 88

*  The amounts due In respect of Mr Hammond-Chambers’ fees are paid to his service company
**  Retired 31 July 2012
*** Appointed 1 January 2013

*xx|n addition, Mr Salomon received fees during the year from two companies in which the Company had aninvestment
These were Qcean Wilsons Holdings Limited and DV3 Limited

The Company pays National Insurance Contnbutions on the Directors’ emoluments where applicable

APPROVAL

The Directors’ Remuneration Repert was approved by the of Directors” on 21 June 2013 and signed on 1ts behalf
by Mr Hammond-Chambers
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GRroOUP INCOME STATEMENT

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Hansa
Trust PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Hansa Trust PLC
for the year ended 31 March 2013 which compnise the group
income statement, the group and parent company statements
of changes in equity, the balance sheet of the group and
parent company, the group and parent company cash flow
statements and the related notes The financial reporting
framework that has been applied m thewr preparation
15 apphcable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as
regards the parent company financial statements, as applied
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 15 made solely to the company's members,
as a bedy, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the company's members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the company and the company’s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explaned more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responstbilities set out on page 24, the directors are
responstble for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view
Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial
statements (s provided on the APB's website at www frc
org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

Opinion en financial statements

In our opinion

+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of the group’s and of the parent company's
affairs as at 31 March 2013 and of the Group’s loss for
the year then ended,

+ the group's financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union,

* the parent company financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adepted by the European Union and as appbed in

accordance with the provisions of the Comparnies Act
2006, and

e the financial statements have been prepared In
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the group finangial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our opinton

¢ the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006, and

¢ theinformation given inthe Report of the Directors’ for
the financial yearforwhichthe financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required 1o report

to you If, in our opinion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or retumns adequate for our audit have
not been receved from branches not visited by us, or

s the parent company financial statements and the part
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or

+  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made, or

*  wehavenot received allthe informationand explanations
we require for our audit

tUnder the Listing Rules, we are required to review
* the directors' statement, set out on page 17, In
relation to going concern,

* the part of the Corporate Governance Statement
relating to the company’s compliance with the nine
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review, and

* certain elements of the report to the shareholders by
the Board on directors’ remuneration
Marcus Swales

Semior Statutory Auditor @

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LEP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
London

21 june 2013
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GROUP INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 March 2013

Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(Losses)/gains on investments held
at fair value 11 - (8,809) (8,809) - 1,404 1,404
Exchange losses on currency balances - - - - (€)] 3)
Investment income 2 6,193 - 6,193 6,048 - 6,048
Other iIncome 2 - - - 1 - 1
6,193 (8,809) (2,616) 6,049 1,401 7,450
Investment Management fees 3 (1,512) - {1,512) (1,565) - (1,565}
Other expenses 4 (753) - (753) (801) - {801}
(2,265) - {2,265) (2,366) - (2,366)
(Losses)/galns before finance costs
and taxation 3,928 (8,809) (4,881) 3,683 1,401 5,084
Finance costs 5 (42) - (42) (154) - (154)
(Losses)/gains before taxation 3,886 (8,809) (4,923) 3,529 1,401 4,930
Taxation 6 (16) - (16) {4) - (@)
(Losses)/galns for the year 3,870 (8,809) (4,939) 3,525 1,401 4,926
Return per Ordinary and *A’
non-voting Ordinary share 8 16.1p (36 7)p (20 6)p 14 7p 58p 20 5p

The Company does not have any income or expense that is not included in the profit/loss for the year Accordingly the
“Profit/Loss for the year” 15 also the “Total comprehensive income for the year”, as defined in tAS 1 {revised) and no
separate Statement of Comprehensive Income has been presented

The total column of this statement represents the Group’s income Statement, prepared in accordance with IFRS The
supplementary revenue and capital return columns are both prepared under guidance published by the Association of
Investment Companies

All revenue and capital items in the above statement derive from continuing operations

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQuiTy — GRrROUP

Note
Net assets at 1 April

{Losses)/gains for the year
Dividends 7

Net assets at 31 March

for the year ended 31 March 2013

Capital Capital
Share redemption Retained Share redemption Retained
capital reserve earnings Total capital reserve  earnings Total
2013 2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 fooo £000 £000 £000
1,200 300 266,707 268,207 1,200 300 262,613 264,113
- - (4,939) (4,939) - - 4,926 4,926
- - (3,360) (3,360) - - 832) (832)
1,200 300 258,408 259,908 1,200 300 266,707 268,207

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQuIiTy — COMPANY

Note
Net assets at 1 Apnl

{Losses)/gains for the year
Dwvidends 7

Net assets at 31 March

for the year ended 31 March 2013

Capital Capital
Share redempiion Retained Share redemption Retzined
capital reserve earnings Total capitat reserve  earmngs Total
2013 2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 fooo
1,200 300 266,707 268,207 1,200 300 262,613 264,113
- - (4,939} (4,939) - - 4,926 4,926
- - (3,380) (3,360) - - 832) (832)
1,200 300 258,408 259,908 1,200 300 266,707 268,207

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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BALANCE SHEET OF THE GROUP AND COMPANY

for the year ended 31 March 2013

Group Group Company Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiary at fair value
through profit or loss 10 - - 631 632
Investments held at fair value through
profit or loss 11 262,403 270,944 262,403 270,944
262,403 270,944 263,034 271,576
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 13 439 294 439 294
Cash and cash equivalents 14 126 137 126 137
565 431 565 431
Current liabibitres
Trade and other payables 15 (3,060} (3,168) (3,691) (3,800}
Net current liabilities (2,495} (2,737) (3,126) (3.369)
Net assets 259,908 268,207 259,908 268,207
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 16 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200
Capital redemption reserve 17 300 300 300 300
Retained earmings 18 258,408 266,707 258,408 266,707
Total equity shareholders’ funds 259,908 268,207 259,908 268,207
Net asset value per Ordinary and
‘A’ non-voting Ordinary share 19 1,082 9p 1,117 5p 1,082 9p 1,117 5p

The Financial Statements of Hansa Trust Pl, registered number 126107, set cut on pages 42 to 59 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 21 June 2013 and were signed onits behalf by

Dttt r ot XK gtlont

Alex Hammond—Chambers
Chairman

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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CasH FLow STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 March 2013

Group Group Company Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash Alows from operating activities
{Loss)/Gain before finance costs and taxation (4,881) 5,084 (4,881} 5,084
Adjustments for
Reabsed losses on investments 11 2,121 4,388 2,121 4,388
Unrealised losses/{gains) on investments 11 6,688 (5.792) 6,689 (5,792)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes - 3 - 3
Increase in trade and other receivables 13 (145) (13) (145) a3
Increase/{decrease) in trade and
other payables 15 22 (195) 21 (195)
Taxes paid (16) (4) (16) (4)
Putchase of non-current investments (1,319) (11,582) (1,319) (11,582}
Sale of non-current investments 1,051 8,412 1,051 8,412
Net cash inflow from
operating activities 3,521 301 3,521 30
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid on bank loans (a2} (154) (42) (154)
Divtdends pard (3,360) 832) (3.360) (832)
Repayment of loans (130) {7.470) (130) {7,470)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (3,532) {8,456) (3,532} (8,456)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (11) (8,155) (11} (8,155)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Apnil 137 8,295 137 8,295
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes - €)] - (3}
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 14 126 137 126 137

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Group and Company have
been prepared in accordance with International financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) These comprise standards
and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™), together with
interpretations of the International Accounting Standards
and Standing Interpretations Committee approved by the
International Accounting Standards Committee (“IASC")
that remain in effect, to the extent that IFRS have been
adopted by the European Umion New and changed IFRS
9 and IFRS 13 in place, whilst not yet effective, are bemg
reviewed by the Board to consider whether they will have
a matenal effect gn the financial statements

These financial statements are presented In Sterling
because that 1s the currency of the primary economic
enviranment in which the Group operates As permitted
by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, an income
statement for the Company has not been presented in the
financial statements

(a) Basis of preparation

Thefinancial statements have been prepared on an historical
cost and going concern basis, except for the valuation
of investments and 1n accordance with the Statement of
Recommended Practice (*SORP™) for investment trusts,
issued by the Association of Investment Compantes (“AIC™)
in January 2009 The pnncipal accounting policies adopted
are set out below

(b} Basis of consolidation

The Financial Statements comprise the accounts of the
Company and its subsidiary undertaking made up to
31 March 2013 In the Company's Financial Statements
the wvestment 1n its subsidiary undertaking 1s stated at
fair value All accounting policies are applied consistently
throughout the Group

(¢) Presentation of Income Statement

In order to better reflect the activities of an investment trust
company and in accordance with guidance 1ssued by the
AlC, supplementary information which analyses the Income
Statement between items of a revenue and capital nature,
has been presented alongside the Income Statement In
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, net
capital returns may not be distnbuted by way of dividend
Additionally, the net revenue i1s the measure the Directors
believe to be appropnate in assessing the Company's
comphance with certain requirements set out 1in 51158
CTA 2010

(d} Non-current investments

As the Company’s business 1s investing 1n finanaat
assets, with a view to profing from therr total return in
the form of income received and increases n fair value,
investments are designated as fair value through profit or
loss on mitial recognition In accordance with 1AS 39 The
Company manages and evaluates the performance of these
investments on a fair value basis, in accordance with its
investment strategy and information about the investments
15 provided on this basis to the Board of Directors

Investments are recogrised and de recognised on the trade
date For listed investments fair value 1s deemed to be bid
market prices or closing prices for SETS stocks sourced
from the London Stock Exchange SETS 1s the London Stock
Exchange's electronic trading service covering most of the
market including all FTSE 100 constituents and most iquid
FTSE 250 constituents, along with some other securities

Unquoted investments are stated at fair value through
profit or loss as determined by using various valuation
techmgues, in accordance with the International Prnvate
Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines These
include using recent arms length market transactions
between knowledgeable and willing parties where available

Gans and losses ansing from changes n fair value are
included in net profit or loss for the period as a capital item
in the Income Statement and are ultimately recognised in
the Capital Reserves

(e) Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash at bank,
short-term deposits and cash funds with an onginal matunty
of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant
nsk of changes in capitat value

(f) Investment Income and retumn of capital

Dividends receivable on equity shares are recognised on
the ex dividend date Where no ex dividend date 1s quoted,
dwidends are recognised when the Company’s nght to
receive payment is established UK dradends are stated net
of related tax credits, while overseas dividends and REI
Income 1s stated gross

When an invested company returns capital to the Company,
the amount recewved 15 treated as a reduction in the book
cost of that investment and 1s classified as Sale Proceeds

(g} Expenses

All expenses are accounted fer on an accruals basis
Expenses are charged through the revenue column of the
Income Statement except as follows
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (ontinued)

() expenses which are incidental to the acquisition or
disposal of an investment are charged to the capital
column of the Income Statement, and

() expenses are charged to the capital reserves, via the
capital cclumn of the Income Statement, where a
connection with the maintenance or enhancement of
the value of the investments can be demonstrated

(h) Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the
year Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the Income Statement, because it excludes items of
Income or expenses that are taxable or deductible 1n other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible The Group’s hiability for current taxis calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date

Inhnewththe SORP, the allocation method used tocalculate
tax relief on expenses presented against capital returns in
the supplementary information in the Income Statement 1s
the “marginal basis” Under this basis, if taxable income 1s
capable of being offset entirely by expenses presented in
the revenue return column of the Income Statement, then
no tax relief is transferred to the capital return column

Deferred taxation 15 the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities 1n the Financial Statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet
liabibity method Deferred tax babilities are recognised for
all taxabte temporary differences Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent it 1s probable that taxable profits
will be avalable against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised

Approved Investment Trusts under s 1158 CTA 2010 are not
lhable for taxation en capital gans

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
1s no longer probable that sufficent taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax s calculated at the tax rates expected to apply
in the pencd when the liability is settled or the asset 1s
realised Deferred tax 15 charged or credited in the Income
Statement, except when 1t relates to items charged or

credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax
1s also dealt with in equity or other comprehensive income

(i} Foreign Currencies

Transactions denominated (n foreign currencies are
recorded in the local currency, at the actual exchange rates
as at the date of the transaction Assets and lLabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are
reported at the rate of exchange prevailing at the year end
Any gain or loss ansing from a change 1n exchange rates,
subsequent to the date of the transaction, 1s included as an
exchange gain or loss In the capital or revenue column of
the Income Statement, depending on whether the gain or
loss 1s of a capital or revenue nature respectively

(/) Reserves
Capital reserves — Other

The following are credited or charged to this reserve via the
capital column of the Income Statement

— gains and losses on the disposal of iInvestments,
— exchange differences of a capital nature, and

— expenses charged to the capital column of the Income
Statement in accordance with the above accounting
policies

Capital reserves — Investment Holding Gains

The following are credited or charged to this reserve via
the capital column of the Income Statement

— Increases and decreases in the valuation of
Investments held at the year end

Revenue Reserves

The following are credited or charged to this reserve via
the revenue column of the Income Statement

- net revenue recogmsed in the revenue column of the
Income Statement

(k} Adoption of new and revised standords
Accounting standards 1ssued but not yet effective

Standards 1ssued but not yet effective up to the date of
1ssuance of the Group’s Financial Statements are listed
below This listing of standards and interpretations 1ssued
are those the Group reasonably expects will have an
impact on disclosures, financial position and/er financial
performance, when applied at a future date The Group
intends to adopt those standards {where applicable) when
they become effective

47




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement IFRS 13 defines far value, sets out in a
single IFRS a framework for measunng farr value and
requires disclosures about fair value measurements [FRS
13 applies when other IFRS' require or permit fair value
measurements It does not introduce any new requirements
to measure an asset or a liability at fair value, change what
1s measured at fair value in [FRS or address how to present
changes in fair value The new requirements are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 fanuary 2013,
with earlier application permitted The Group 1s considening
what impact the adoption of this new standard will have on
its financial position and/or performance, disclosures and
stated accounting policies

{FRS 9 Fmancial
Measurement

Instruments  Classification  and

IFRS 9 as 1ssued reflects the first phase of the 1ASB’s work
on the replacement of I1AS 39 and applies to classification
and measurement of financial assets and financial lablities
as defined in 1AS 39 The standard 15 currently effective
for annual penods beginming on or after 1 January 2015
In subsequent phases, the IASB will address hedge
accounting and impairment of financial assets The
adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on
the classification and measurement of the Group’s finangial
assets but will potentially have no impact on classification
and measurement of financial liabilities The Group will
guantify the effect in conpunction with the other phases,
when tssued, to present a comprehensive picture

Partial Replacement of IAS 39 Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement

New standards IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements,
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and {FRS 12 Disclosure of
interests in Other Entities and revisions of IAS 27 Separate
Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Assoclates
and Joint Ventures

IAS 1 Financial Statement Presentation — Presentation of
ltems of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendment to IAS 1 changes the grouping of items
presented in QCI Iltems that could be reclassified (or
‘recycled’) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for
example, upon de recogmtion or settlement) would be
presented separately from items which will never be
reclassified The amendment affects presentation only
and therefore will have no impact on the Group's financial
position or performance The amendment became effective
for annual peniods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS tontinued)

2. INCOME
Revenue Revenue
2013 2012
£000 £000
Income from quoted investments
UK dividends 3,436 2,892
Overseas dividends 2,757 3,156

6,193 6,048

Other income

Interest receivable on AAA rated money market funds - 1
- 1
Total income 6,193 6,049

3. INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT FEE

Revenue Revernue

2013 2012
£000 £000
Investment management fee 1,512 1,565
Total management fee 1,512 1,565

Details of the Investment Management Agreement are disclosed in the Report of the Directors on pages 16

4 OTHER EXPENSES

Revenue Revenue

2013 2012
£000 £000
Administration fees 100 125
Directors’ remuneration 85 88
Auditor's remuneration for
— audit of the Company's annual accounts 28 27
Fees payable to the Auditor for other services
- audit of the subsidiary 1 1
— review of the half yearly report 3 3
Irrecoverable VAT on audit fee 6 5
Prninting fees 33 28
Marketing 26 23
Registrar's fees 58 49
Banking charges 139 196
Secretarial services 120 120
Other 154 136
753 801
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5. FINANCE COSTS
Revenue Revenue
2013 2012
£000 £000
Interest payable 42 154
42 154
6. TAXATION
(a} Taxation on Ordinary Activities
Revenue Revenue
2013 2012
£000 £000
UK corporation tax at 24% (2012 26%) - -
Irrecoverable foreign tax 16 4
16 4

(b) Factors affecting tax charge for perlod

Approved investment trusts are exempt from tax on capital gains made by the Trust

The tax charge for the penod is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 24% (2012 26%) The

differences are explained below

2013 2012

£000 £000

Total (loss}/gain before taxation (4,923) 4,930

(Loss)/Gain multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax (1,182) 1,282
Effects of

Non-taxable UK capital losses/(gains) 2,114 (364)

Non-taxable UK investment income (1,486} (1,573)

Excess administration expenses unused 554 655

Irrecoverable foreign tax 16 4

Current tax charge 16 4

(¢) Provision for deferred taxation

There 1s no requirement to make a provision for deferred taxation in the current or prior accounting period

(d) Factors that may affect future tax charges

As at 31 March 2013 the Company had unutilised management expenses and loan relationship deficits of
£14,372,000 (2012 £12,107,000) The expenses will only be utilised to the extent that there 15 sufficient future
taxable income, or If the tax treatment of the capital gains made by the Company or the Company’s tnvestment
profile changes The subsidhary has tax losses of £134,000 (2012 £133,000) which will only be recoverable to the

extent that there are sufficient future taxable profits
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7 DIVIDENDS PAID

Revenue Revenue

2013 2012
£000 £000

Amounts recognised as distributed to equity holders in the year are as follows
Final dividend for 2012 10 5p (2011 nil) 2,520 -
Intenm dividend for 2013 3 5p (2012 3 5p) 840 840
Unclaimed dividends refunded - (8}
3,360 832

Set out betow are the total dividends paid and proposed in respect of the financial year, which is the basis on which the
requirements of s 1158 CTA 2010 are considered The Company’s revenue available for distnbution by way of dividend
for the year1s £3,870,000 (2012 £3,525,000)

Revenue Revenue

2013 2012

£000 £000

Intenm dividends for 2013 3 5p (2012 3 5p) 840 840
Proposed final dividend for 2013 11 5p (2012 10 5p}) 2,760 2,520

3,600 3,360

The Board Is propesing a final dividend of 11 5p per Qrdinary and *A’ non-voting Ordinary share

8. RETURN ON ORDINARY SHARES (EQUITY)

Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
Returns per share 16 1p (36.7)p (20 6)p 14 7p 58p 20 5p

Returns
Revenue return per share Is based on the revenue attributable to equity shareholders of £3,870,000 (2012 £3,525,000}

Capital return per share 1s based on the capital loss attributable to equity shareholders of £(8,809,000) (2012 gan
£1,401,000)

Total return per share 1s based on the combinatron of revenue and capital returns attributable to equity shareholders,
amounting to a net loss of £(4,939,000) (2012 gain £4,926,000)

Both revenue and capital return are based on 8,000,000 Ordinary shares (2012 8,000,000) and 16,000,000 ‘A’
non-voting Ordinary shares (2012 16,000,000}, in1ssue throughout the year

9. PROFIT OF THE COMPANY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
The loss for the year after taxation dealt with in the accounts of the Company 1s £4,939,000, (2012 gain £4,926,000)

10. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY
The Company owns 100% of the ordinary share capital and voting nghts of Consohdated Investment Funds Limited, an
investment dealing company, registered and operating in England
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contnued)

11 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Cost at1 Apnl 2012
Investment holding gains/{losses) at 1 Apnl 2012

Valuation at t Aprit 2012
Reclassification of investments
Movements in the year
Purchases at cost
Sales — proceeds
- losses on sales
Movement in investment holding (losses}/gains

Valuation as at 31 March 2013

Cost
Investment holding gains/{losses)

Losses on sales
Movement in (nvestment holding {losses}/gains

(Losses)/gains on investments held at fair value

Groupand Group and

Company Company

AlM & 2013 2012

Listed QFEX  Unguoted Total Tetal
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
106,519 59,550 6,292 172,361 173,644
104,616 (5,876) (157) 98,583 92,791
211,135 53,674 6,135 270,944 266,435
(1,272) 1,272 - - -
- 800 519 1,319 11,517
{176) (875) - (1,051) 8,412)
- (2,121) - (2,121) {4,388)
(1,282) (5,644} 238 {6,688) 5,792
208,405 47,106 6,892 262,403 270,944
103,228 60,469 6,811 170,508 172,361
105,177  (13,363) 81 91,895 98,583
208,405 47,106 6,892 262,403 270,944
Group and Group and

Company Company

2013 2012

£000 £0600

(2,121) (4,388)

(6.688) 5,792

(8,809) 1,404

Transaction costs Dunng the year expenses were incurred in acquinng and disposing of investments classified as fair
value through profit or lass These have been expensed through capital and are included within gains on investments

in the Income Statement The total costs were as follows

Purchases
Sates

Group and
Company
2013
£000

Group and
Company
1012
o000

12
12

24
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS tcontinued)

12, SIGNIFICANT HOLDINGS

The Company’s holdings of 10% or more of any class of shares 1n investment companies and 20% or more of any class
of shares in non-investment companies are detalled below

Exc Minonity Interest

Latest Profit

Country of % of avaitable Total after

incorporation Class of tlass audited  capital and tax for

Non-investment company or registratian capital held accounts reserves the year

Us$000 US$000

Ocean Wilsons Holdings Limited Bermuda Ordinary 264 311212 531,914 41,263

The above 1s included as part of the Investment portfolio 1n accordance with IAS 28 ~ Investment In Associates

The Company has matenal holdings in the following companies which represent moare than 3% of any class of equity
share capital

Company Class of capital % of class held
Straight Plc Ordinary 94
Altitude Group Plc Ordinary 64
Andor Technotogy Ordinary 54
Work Group Plc Ordinary 49
Leadcom Integrated Solutions Ordinary 45
Acertec Plc Ordinary 4 4
Goals Soccer Centres Plc Ordinary 40
Helesi Plc Ordinary 38
NCC Group Plc Ordinary 36
Media Square Plc Ordinary 36
All Leisure Ordinary 36
Hargreaves Services Plc Ordinary 33
Ark Therapeutics Ordimary 31
Kimberly Enterpnses Ordinary 30

13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Group Company  Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000
Prepayments and accrued income 439 272 439 272
Recoverable domestic tax - 22 - 22
439 294 439 294

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group Group  Company  Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash at bank 126 137 126 137
126 137 126 137
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ontnued

15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Group  Company  Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000

Bank loans and overdrafts 2,800 2,930 2,800 2,930
Due to subsidiary undertaking - - 631 633
Other creditors and aceruals 260 238 260 237

3,060 3,168 3,691 3,800

Details of the bank loan can be found in Note 21

16 SHARE CAPITAL
Company  Company

2013 2012
£000 £000
8,000,000 Ordinary shares of 5p 400 400
16,000,000 ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares of 5p 800 800

1,200 1,200

The ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares do not entitle the holders to receve notices or to vote, either in person or by proxy, at
any general meeting of the Company, but in all other respects rank par passu with the Ordinary shares of the Company

17. CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE
Group and Company

2013 2012

£000 fooo

Balance at 31 March 300 300
18. RETAINED EARNINGS

Capital Reserves Capital Reserves

Investment Total Investment Total

Holding  Retained Holdmg  Retained

Revenue Other Gains Earnings Revenue Other Gains Earnings

2013 2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012 2012

Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 f000 £000 £000

Opening balance at 1 Apnl 5,761 162,363 98,583 266,707 3,068 166,754 92,791 262,613
Profit/{loss) for theyear 3,870 (2,121)  (6,688)  (4,939) 3,525 (4,391 5792 4,926
Dividend patd (3,360) - - (3,360) (832) - - (832)

Closing balance at 31 March 6,271 160,242 91,895 258,408 5,761 162,363 98,583 266,707
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ontinued)

18. RETAINED EARNINGS (continued)

Capitat Reserves Capital Reserves
Investment Total Investment Total
Holding  Retained Holding Retained
Revenue Other Galns Earnings Revenue Other Gains Earnings
2013 2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012 2012
Company £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Opening balanceat 1Apnl 5,132 162,363 99,212 266,707 2,438 166,754 93,421 262,613
Prefit/(toss) for the year 3,871 (2,121}  (6,68%)  (4,939) 3,526 (4,391) 5,791 4,926
Dwvidend paid (3,360) - - (3,360) (832} - - (832)

Closing balance at 31 March 5,643 160,242 92,523 258,408 5132 162,363 99,212 266,707

Note Only Revenue reserves are distributable, by way of dividends

19. NET ASSET VALUE
2013 2012

NAV per Ordinary and ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary share 1,0829p 1,117 5p

The NAV per Ordinary and ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary share 1s based on the net assets attnbutable to equity shareholders
of £259,908,000 (2012 £268,207,000) and on 8,000,000 Ordinary shares {2012 8,000,000} and 16,000,000 ‘A’
non-voting Ordinary shares (2012 16,000,000), inissue at 31 March 2013

20. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has entered into a commitment agreement with DV3 Ltd, an unquoted property investment company DV3
Ltd 1s i solvent hquidation with a commitment of £807,438, which s expected to remain in place until the completion of
the orderly winding up of the company The amount outstanding at 31 March 2013 was £327,438 (2012 £3,993,337)

The Company has entered into a commitment agreement with DV4 Ltd, an unquoted property investment company

The commitment was for £10 m for a penod of five years from 7 March 2008 Dunng the year, the commutment period
was extended for a further two years and capital calls made so that at 31 March 2013 80% of the commitment had been
drawn The Company returned £1,475,000 of excess funding by way of Loan which was outstanding at 31 March 2013

The amount of the commitment outstanding at 31 March 2013 was £1,999,000 (2012 £6,1594,325)

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS

The Company's financial instruments comprise secunties, cash balances, debtors and creditors ansing directly from its
operations All financial assets and liabilities are either carned in the Balance Sheet at their fair value, or the Balance
Sheet amount 1s a reasonable approximation of fair value The risks that the Group as a whole 1s exposed to are the
same as those for the Company and are covered below

Risk Objectives and Policies

The objective of the Company 15 to achieve growth of shareholder value commensurate with the nsks taken, bearing in
mind that the protection of long-term shareholder value 1s paramount The policy of the Board is to provide a framework
within which the Investment Manager can operate and deliver the objectives of the Company In pursuingits investment
objective, the Company 1s exposed to a variety of risks that could result in either a reduction in the Company’s net
assets and/or a reduction of the profits available for dwvidends
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21, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued}

These risks include those identified by the accounting standard IFRS 7, being market nisk (comprsing currency nsk,
interest rate nsk and other pnce risk), hquidity nsk and credit nisk and the Directors’ approach to the management of
them are set out below The Board, in conjunction with the Investment Manager and Company Secretary, oversees the
Company's nsk management

The objectives, policies and processes for managing the risks and the methods used to measure them are set out
below, these have not changed from the previous accounting penod

Risks Associated with Financial Instruments
Foreign currency nsk

Foreign currency nsks anse in two distinct areas which affect the valuation of the investment portfolio 1) where an
Investment IS denominated and paid for in a currency other than Sterling, and 2) where an investment has substantial
non-Sterling cash flows The Company does not normally hedge agamnst foreign currency movements affecting the value
of the investment portfolio, but takes account of this risk when making investment decisions The Investment Manager
monitors the effect of foreign currency fluctuations through the pricing of the investments by the various markets The
level of investments denomuinated in foreign currencies held by the Company at 31 March 2013 1s 1 7% of the portfolio
(2012 1 7%) and therefore the portfolio valuation 1s not matenally sensitive to direct foreign currency fluctuations

Direct No direct Direct No direct
forelgn foreign foreign foreign
currency currency Total currency currency Total
risk risk sk risk
2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Investments 4,804 257,959 262,403 4,720 266,224 270,944
Other receivables excluding prepayments 231 208 439 78 216 294
Cash at bank - 126 126 - 137 137
Current hiabilities - (260) (260) - (238) (238)
Bank loan - (2,800) (2,800) - (2,930} (2,930

4,675 255,233 259,908 4,798 263,409 268,207

interest rate risk

Interest rate movements may affect the level of iIncome receivable on cash deposits and the interest payable on the
Company's vanable rate borrowings

The Company has banking faciliies amounting to £30m (2012 £30m} which are available for the Investment Manager
to use in purchasing nvestments, the costs of which are based on the prevailing LIBOR rate, plus an agreed margin

The Company does not normally hedge aganst interest rate movements affecting the value of the investment portfolio,
but takes account of this nisk when an investment 1s made utibising the faciity The level of banking facsliies used 1s
monitored by both the Board and the Investment Manager on a regular basis The impact on the returns and net assets
of the Company for every 1% change in interest rates based on the amount drawn down at the year end under the facility
would be £28,000 (2012 £29,300) The level of banking facthties utibsed at 31 March 2013 was £2 8m (2012 £2 9m)
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21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Interest rate changes usually impact equity prices The level and direction of change 1n equity prices 1s subject to
prevailing local and world economic conditions as well as market sentiment, all of which are very difficult to predict
with any certatnty The Company has floating rate financial assets conststing of bank balances and cash funds that have
recerved average rates of interest during the year of 0 0% on bank balances

Cash flow No Cash flow No
interest interest interest interest
rate risk rate nisk Total rate ngk rate nsk Total
2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Investments - 262,403 262,403 - 270,944 270,944
Other receivables excluding prepayments - 439 439 - 294 294
Cash at bank 126 - 126 137 - 137
Current habilities - (260) (260) - (238) (238)
Bank loan (2,800) - (2,800) (2,930) - (2,930}

(2.674) 262,582 259,908 (2,793} 271,000 268,207

Other price nisk

By the nature of its activities, the Company’s investments are exposed to market price fluctuations NAV s calculated
and reported daily to the London Stock Exchange The Investment Manager and the Board monitor the portfolio
valuation on a regular basis and consideration 1s given to hedging the portfolio against large market movements

The Company’s investment in Qcean Wilsons 1s large both i absolute terms, £97 3m (2012 £109 9m) and as a
proportion of the NAV, 37 4% (2012 41 0%) Shareholders should be aware that if anything of a severe and untoward
nature were to happen to this company, it could result in a significant reduction in the NAV and share price However,
it1s an investment the Board pays close attention to and 1t should be pointed out that the risks associated with it are
very different from those of the other compamies represented in the portfolio The Board itself regularly undertakes
a thorough review of its business and prospects and has determined that its future holds a lot of promise As a
conseguence the Board believes the nisk involved in the investment 1s worthwhile

The perfermance of the portfolio as @ whole 15 not designed to corretate with that of any market index Should the
portfolio of the Company, as detailed on page 38, nse or fall in value by 10% from the year end valuation, the effect
on the Group profit and equity would be an equal rise or fall of £26 2m (2012 £27 1m)} The Company gearing, which
is currently at 1 1% (2012 1 1%), would increase to 1 2% (2012 1 2%) should the Company’s portfelic fall in vatue
by 10%

Credit Risk

The Company only transacts with regulated institutions on nermal market terms, which are trade date plus one to three
days The levels of amounts outstanding from brokers are regularly reviewed by the Investment Manager The duration
of credit nsk associated with the investment transactions 1s the period between the date the transaction took place, the
trade date, the date the stock and cash are transferred and the settlement date The level of nsk duning the period 1s

the difference between the value of the onginal transaction and its replacement with a new transaction The amounts
due to/{from} brokers at 31 March 2013 are shown in Note 13 and Note 15

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk on cashis £126,000 (2012 £137,000)
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21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS {continued)
Liquidity Risk

The hquidity nsk to the Company is that it 1s unable to meet s obligations as they fall due, as a result of a lack of
available cash and an inability to dispose of investments in a imely manner A substantial propertion of the Company's
portfolio 1s held in iiquid quoted investments, however there s a large holding in Ocean Wilsons of 37 4% {2012 41 0%)
and other holdings in AIM and unguoted investments of 20 6% (2012 20 0%)

The Investment Manager takes into consideration the iquidity of each investment when purchasing and selling, in order
to maximise the returns to shareholders by placing suitable transaction levels into the market Special consideration is
given to investments that represent more than 5% of the investee company A detailed bist of the top 30 investments held
at 31 March 2013 I1s shown on page 38, together with a summary table detailing the markets on which the investments
are quoted This can be used broadly to ascertain the levels of iquidity within the portfolio, although liguidity will vary
with each investment

The Company's financial llabiliies at 31 March 2013 consist of a short-term bank loan amounting to £2 8m (2012
£2 9m) that bears interest based on the prevailing LIBOR rate, plus an agreed margin This loan 1s part of a total revolving
credit facility with BNP of £30m (2012 BNP £30m) The facility 1s a commutted facslity repayable on or befere 6 February
2014 and subject to a covenant requirement of a mimimum adjusted NAV of £69m The Company has undrawn loans from
this facitity of £27 2m (2012 £27 1m) The Company holds this facility for use at short notice for its iInvestment activities
If fully drawn the loan would form 11 7% (2012 11 1%) of the current value of the investment portfolio

Capital Management

The Company considers its capital to be its 1ssued share capital and reserves and whilst the Company has access to loan
facilities 1it1s not considered or used as core capital, but pnmanly to meet the cash timing requirements of opportunistic
imvestment strategies and thereby enhance shareholder returns The Board regularly monitors its share discount policy
and the level of discounts and whilst it has the option to re-purchase shares, It considers the best means of attaining a
good rating for the shares 15 to concentrate on good shareholder returns

However, the Board believes the ability of the Company to re-purchase its own ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares in the
market may potentially enable it to benefit all equity shareholders of the Company The re-purchase of ‘A’ non-voting
Ordinary shares at a discount to the underlying NAV would enhance the NAV per share of the remaining equity shares
and 1t might also enable the Company to address more effectively any imbalance between supply and demand for the
Company’s ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares

22 FAIR YALUE HIERARCHY

IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures' requires an entity to classify fair value measurements using a fair value
hierarchy that reflects the sigmificance of the inputs used m making the measurements The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels

Level1l quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets foridentical assets or babilities,

Level2  nputs other than quoted pnces mcluded within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either
directly (1e as prices) or indirectly (1e denved from prices), and

Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
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22, FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

The financial assets and labilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into the fair
value hierarchy valued in accordance with the accounting polictes in Note 1 are detailed below

31 March 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Quoted equities 255,511 - - 255511
Unguoted equities - - 6,892 6,892
Net fair value 255,511 - 6,892 262,403
31 March 2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Finanoial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Quoted equities 264,809 - - 264,809
Unquoted equrties - - 6,135 6,135
Net fair value 264,809 - 6,135 270,944

There were no transfers dunng the year between Levels 1 and 2, a reconciliation of fair value measurements in Level 3
15 set out tn the following table

2013 2012

Equity Equity

investments nvestments

£000 £000

Opening Balance 6,135 4,154

Purchases 519 2,201

Sales - (765)
Total gains or losses included in gains on Investments In the income statement

—on assets sold - 721

—on assets held at year end 238 (176)

Closing Balance 6,892 6,135

23, RELATED PARTIES

Detals of the relationship between the Company and Hansa Capital Partners LLP, including amounts paid during the year
and owing at 31 March 2013, are disclosed in the Report of the Directors on pages 16 and 17 and tn Note 3 on page 49

24, CONTROLLING PARTIES

At 31 March 2013 Mr Peter Pearman and Codan Trust Company Limited held 51 7% of the issued Ordinary shares
Additional infermation 1s disclosed in the Report of the Directors, “Substantial Shareholders” on pages 16 and 17
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice 1s hereby given that the Annuzl General Meeting
of Hansa Trust PLC will be held at The Washington Hotel,
5 Curzon Street, London W1) 5HE on 31 July 2013 at
11 30am, for the following purposes

Ordinary Business

1 To recewe and consider the audited Financial
Statements and the Reports of the Directors and
Auditor for the year ended 31 March 2013

2 To approve the payment of a final dividend of 11 5p
per share

3 To re-appomt the Auditor and to authorise the
Directors to determine the remuneration of the
Auditor

4 To re-elect Mr Hammond-Chambers (a bicgraphy and
Board endorsement can be found on page 11), who
retires, as a Director of the Company

5 Toelect MrDavie (a biography and Board endorsement
can be found on page 11}, who retires, as a Director of
the Company

6 To elect Lord Oxford (a2 biography and Board
endorsement can be found on page 11), who retires,
as a Director of the Company

7 To re-elect Mr Salomon (a biography and Board
endersement can be found on page 11), who retires,
as a Director of the Company

8 To re-elect Professor Wood (a biography and Board
endorsement can be found on page 11}, who retires,
as a Director of the Company

9 To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report and
authonse the Board to determine the remuneration of
the Directors

Special Business

To consider and If thought fit, pass the following
resolutions which will be proposed as special resolutions

Authority to re-purchase up to 1499% of the A’
non-voting Ordinary shares

10 THAT the Company be unconditionally authonsed
to make market purchases of up to an aggregate of
2,398,400 ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares of 5p of the
Company at a price (exclusive of expenses) which1s

a) not iess than 5p per share, and

b) not more than the higher of 1} 5% above the
average of the middle-market gquotations (as

dernved from the Daily Official List of the Londen
Stock Exchange) for ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary
shares of 5p each in the five business days
immediately preceding any such purchase and
it} the higher of the last independent trade and
the then current highest independent bid, AND

THAT the authority conferred by this resolution shall expire
on the date of the next AGM (except In relation to the
purchase of shares, the contract for which was concluded
before such date and which might be executed wholly or
partly after such date)

By order of the Board
Hansa Capltal Partners LLP
Secretary

21 june 2013

50 Curzon Street
London W1} 7UW
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL (GENERAL MEETING

| NOTES

for the year ended 31 March 2013

1

Ordinary shareholders, proxies and authonsed
representatives of corporations which are Ordinary
shareholders, are entitled to attend the meeting To
be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting (and for
the purpose of the determuination by the Company of
the number of votes they may cast), members must
be entered on the Company’s register of members by
6 00pmon 29 July 2013 (‘the specifiedtime’) Changes
to the register of members after the relevant deadline
shall be disregarded in determining the nights of any
person to attend and vote at the meeting

If the meeting 1s adjourned to a time not more than
48 hours after the speafied time applicable to the
onginal meeting, that time will also apply for the
purpose of determining the entitlement of members
to attend and vote (and for the purpose of determining
the number of votes they may cast) at the adjourned
meeting If however the meeting 1s adjourned for a
longer penod then, to be so entitled, members must
be entered on the Company’s register of members at
the time which 15 48 hours hefore the time fixed for
the adjourned meeting or, if the Company gives notice
ofthe adjourned meeting, at the time specified in that
notice

A member entitled to attend and vote and present
in person or by proxy shall have one vote on a show
of hands On a vote by poll every Member entitled to
vote shall have one vote for every Ordinary share of
which he/fshe 1s the holder

A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting
1s entitled to appomt one or more proxies to attend
and, upon a poll, to vote instead of him/her provided
that each proxy 1s appointed to exercise the nghts
attached to a different share or shares held by that
member A proxy need not also be a member To
appoint more than one proxy, the Proxy Form should
be photocopied and completed for each proxy holder
The proxy holder's name should be wntten on the
Proxy Form together with the number of shares in
relation to which the proxy 1s authonised to act All
proxy forms should be enclosed in the same envelope

in the case of joint holders, where more than one of
the joint holders purports to appoint a proxy, only the
appomtment submitted by the most senior holder will
be accepted Semonty s determined by the order in
which the names of the joint holders appear in the

10

11

register of members in respect of the joint holding
(the first-named being the most senior)

To be valid any Proxy Form or other instrument
appointing a proxy must be received by post (during
normal business hours only), by hand at Capita
Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham,
Kent BR3 4TU, or a proxy can be lodged electromcally
at www capitashareportal com, 1n each case no later
than 11 30am on 29 July 2013

The return of a completed Proxy Form, other such
instrument or any CREST Proxy Instruction (as
descnbed below) will not prevent a sharehotder from
attending the Annual General Meeting and voting in
personif he/she wishes to do so

Any corporation which 1s a member can appoint one
or more corporate representatives who may exercise
on its behalf all of its powers as a member prowded
that they do not do so in relation to the same shares

As at 25 June 2013 (being the last business day prior
to the publication of this Notice} the Company’s
issued share capital consists of 8,000,000 Ordinary
shares, carrying one vote each Therefore, the total
voting rights in the Company as at 25 June 2013 are
8,000,000

CREST memberswhowishto appointa proxy or proxies
through the CREST electronic proxy appointment
service may do so by using the procedures described
i the CREST Manual CREST personal members or
other CREST sponsored members and those CREST
members who have appointed a service prowvider(s),
should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service
provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate
action on their behalf

In order for a proxy appoiatment or instruction made
using the CREST service to be vald, the appropriate
CREST message {a “CREST Proxy Instruction™ must be
preperly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear
UK & lreland Limited’s specifications and must
contain the information required for such instruction,
as desenbed in the CREST Manual (available via www
euroclear com/CREST} The message, regardless of
whether 1t constitutes the appointment of a proxy
or 1s an amendment to the instruction given to a
previously appointed proxy must, in order to be valid,
be transmitted so as to be received by the issuer’s
agent ID RA10 by 11 30am on 29 July 2013 For this
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12

13

14

15

purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the
time (as determined by the time stamp applied to the
message by the CREST Application Host) from which
the 1ssuer's agent I1s able to retrieve the message by
enguiry to CREST in the manner prescnbed by CREST
After this time any change of instructions to proxies
appointed through CREST should be communicated
to the appointee through other means

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST
sponsors, or veting service providers should note
that Euroclear UK & lreland Liruted does not make
available special procedures n CREST for any
particular message Normal system timings and
limitations will, therefore, applyin relation to the input
of CREST Proxy Instructions It 15 the responsibitity of
the CREST member concerned to take {or, if the CREST
member 1s a CREST personal member, or sponsored
member, or has appointed a voting service provider,
to procure that hus CREST sponsor or voting service
provider(s) take(s)) such action as shalt be necessary
to ensure that 2 message is transmitted by means
of the CREST system by any particular time In this
connection, CREST members and, where applicable,
their CREST sponsors or voting system providers are
referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST
Manual concerning practical imitations of the CREST
system and timings

The Company may treat as imvalid a CREST Proxy
Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation
35(5)(a} of the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations
2001

Any member entitled to attend, vote and duly
appointed or their representative attending the
meeting has the nght te ask questions The Company
must cause to be answered any such question relating
to the business betng dealt with at the meeting but
no such answer may be given If (a} to do so0 would
interfere unduly with the meeting or involve the
disclosure of confidential information, (b) the answer
has already been given on a website in the form of an
answer to a question, or (c) it 1s undesirable In the
interests of the Company or the good order of the
meeting that the question be answered

A copy of this notice and other information required
by section 311A of the Compames Act 2006, can be
found at www hansatrust com

16 The following documents will be avalable for

inspection at the registered office of the Company

17

for the year ended 31 March 2013

dunng usual business hours on any weekday (except
public holidays) until the date of the AGM and at the
place of the AGM for a period of 15 minutes prior to
and during the meeting

a) acopy of the Current Articles of Association, and
b} a copy of all Directors’ Service Contracts

A person to whom this notice is sent who 15 a person
nominated under Section 146 of the Companies
Act 2006 to enjoy information nghts {a ‘Nominated
Person’) may, under an agreement between him/her
and the shareholder by whom he/she was nominated,
have a nght to be appointed (or to have someone else
appointed) as a proxy for the AGM If a Nominated
Person has no such proxy appointment right or does
not wish to exercise it, he/she may, under any such
agreement, have a nght to give instructions to the
shareholder as to the exercse of voting nghts The
statements of the nghts of members in relation to the
appointment of proxses in Notes 1 and 2 above do not
apply to a Nominated Person The nghts descnbed
in those Notes can only be exercised by registered
members of the Company entitled to attend and vote
at the meeting

A person authonsed by a corperation is entitled to
exerase (on behalf of the corporation) the same
powers as the corporation could exercise If it were
an indwidual member of the Company (provided, in
the case of multrple corporate representatives of the
same corporate shareholder, they are appointed in
respect of different shares owned by the corporate
shareholder or, If they are appointed in respect of
those same shares, they vote those shares in the
same way) To be able to attend and vote at the
meeting, corporate representatives will be required to
produce, pricr to ther entry to the meeting, evidence
satisfactory to the Company of their appointment

On a vote on a resolution on a show of hands, each
authonsed person has the same voting nghts to
which the corporation would be entitled On a vote
on a resolution on a poll, if more than one authonsed
person purports to exercise a power in respect of the
same shares

a) If they purport to exercise the power in the
same way as each other, the power 1s treated as
exercised in that way,
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for the year ended 31 March 2013

b) if they do not purport to exercise the power in the
same way as each other, the power s treated as
not exercised

18 Members should note thatit1s possible that, pursuant
to requests made by members of the Company under
Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act”), the
Company may be required to publish on a website a
statement setting out any matter relating to

a) the audi of the Company’s accounts (including
the Auditor's report and the conduct of the audit)
that are to be laid befaore the AGM, or

b) any arcumstances connected with an auditor
of the Company ceasing to hold office since the
previous meeting at which annual accounts and
reports were latd In accordance with Section
437 of the Act The Company may not require
the members requesttng any such website
publication to pay its expenses in complying
with Sections 527 or 528 of the Act Where
the Company 1s required to place a statement
on a website under Section 527 of the Act, 1t
must forward the statement to the Company's
Auditor not later than the time when it makes the
statement available on the website The busimess
which may be dealt with at the AGM Includes any
statement that the Company has been required
under Section 527 of the Act to publish on a
website
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INVESTOR INFORMATION

The Company currently manages its affairs so as to be a qualiffying investment trust for ISA purposes As a result, under
current UK legislation, the Ordinary and 'A’ non-voting Ordinary shares qualify for investment in the stocks and shares
component of a non-CAT Standard ISA up to the full annual subscription imit 1tis the present intentian that the Company
will conduct its affairs so as to continue to qualify for ISA products

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company has 8,000,000 Ordinary shares of 5p each
and 16,000,000 ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares of 5p each
in 1ssue The Ordinary shareholders are enuitled to one
vote per Ordinary share held The ‘A’ non-voting Ordinary
shares do not entitle the holders to vote or receive notice
of meetings, but in all other respects they have the same
nghts as the Cempany's Ordinary shares

CONTACT DETAILS

Hansa Trust PLC

50 Curzon Street, London W1) 7UwW
Telephone 0207647 5750

Fax 020 7647 5770

Email hansatrustenquiry@hansacap com
Website www hansatrust com

The Company’s website includes the following

- Monthly Fact Sheets

- Stock Exchange Announcements
- Interim Management Statements
- Details of the Board Statements
—Annual and Half Yearly Reports

- Share Price Data Reports

Please contact the Investment Manager, as below, if you
have any queries concerning the Coempany's investments
or performance

Hansa Capital Partners LLP

50 Curzon Street

London W1) 7UW

Telephone 0207647 5750

Emall hansatrustenquiry@hansacap com
Website www hansagrp com

Please contact the Registrars, as below, ifyou have a query
about a certificated holding in the Company's shares

Capita Registrars

The Registry

34 Backenham Road

Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

Telephone 0871 664 0300

(Calfs cost 10p per minute plus network charges)
Email ssd@capitaregistrars com

www capitaregistrars com

SHARE PRICE LISTINGS

The price of your shares can be found on our website
and in the Financial Times under the heading Investment
Companies

In addition, share price information can be found under
the following

ISIN No Code

Ordinary shares GB0O007879728
‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares GBO007879835
Sedol na

Ordinary shares 787972

‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares 787983
Reuters

Ordinary shares HAN L

‘A’ non-voting Ordinary shares HANA L
Bloomberg

Ordinary shares HAN LN

‘A’ non veting Ordinary shares HANA LN

SEAQ

Ordinary shares HAN

‘A’ non-voting Ordimary shares HANA

USEFUL INTERNET ADDRESSES
Association of Investment Companies  www theaic co uk

London Stock Exchange www londonstockexchange com

TrustNet www trustnet com
Interactive www Il ¢o uk
FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Company year end 31 March
Preliminary full year results announced 13 June
Annual Report sent to shareholders 27 June
Annual General Meeting 31 July
Final dividend payment August
Announcement of Half Yearly results November
Half Yearly Report sent to shareholders December
Half Yearly dividend payment December
interim Management Staterments fanuary & July
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COMPANY INFORMATION

Registered in England & Wales number 126107

SECRETARY AND REGISTERED OFFICE
Hansa Capital Partners LLP

50 Curzon Street

London W1) 7UW

INVESTMENT MANAGER
Hansa Capital Partners LLP
50 Curzon Street

London W1) 7UW

AUDITORS

Grant Thornton UK LLP
30 Finsbury Square
London EC2P 2YU

SOLICITORS
Eversheds

One Wood Street
London EC2V 7WS

REGISTRAR

Capita Registrars
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

CUSTODIAN

BNP Paribas Securities Services
10 Harewood Avenue

London NW1 6AA

STOCKBROKER

Winterflood Investment Trusts
The Atrtum Building

Cannon Bndge

25 Dowgate Hill

London EC4R 2GA

ADMINISTRATOR

Phoenix Admristration Services Limited
spnngfield Lodge

Colchester Road

Chelmsford

Essex CM2 5PW
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Hansa Trust PLC

50 Curzon Street, London W1} 7UW

Tel 0207647 5750 Fax 020 7647 5770
Website www hansatrust com
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